Public Document Pack

Wirral Children’s Trust

Children’s Trust Board
Agenda

Friday, 15 July 2011 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES

2.

09:00 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:05 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8)

4.

09:10 NOMINATION OF VICE-CHAIR

5.

09:15 CAMHS PRESENTATION (Pages 9 - 26)

6.

09:40 SAFEGUARDING UPDATE QUARTER 1 (Pages 27 - 28)

7.

10:00 ANNUAL REVIEW OF MEMBERSHIP AND MEMORANDUM
OF UNDERSTANDING (Pages 29 - 48)

8.

10:15 COMMISSIONING UPDATE (Pages 49 - 70)
10:30 BREAK

9.

10:50 STAYING SAFE ANNUAL REPORT

10.

11:15 CHILD POVERTY (Pages 71 - 78)

11.

11:30
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S DEPARTMENT
RESTRUTURE (Pages 79 - 84)

12.

11:40 HELP SURVEY RESULTS (Pages 85 - 136)

13.

11:50 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

WIRRAL CHILDREN'S TRUST BOARD

Minutes of the Meeting held on Friday, 20 May 2011

Present

Cllr Sheila Clarke
Pauline Riding (for Adrian Hughes)
David Armstrong
Kathryn Podmore
Richard Longster
Val McGee
Emma Dodd
Gillian Thomas
Peter Brandrick
Anne Tattersall (for Fiona Johnstone)
Debbie Mayor
John Martin
Phil Sheridan

In Attendance

Nancy Clarkson, Tracy Little, Julia Hassall, Vivian Stafford, Mark
Parkinson, Ann Bannister

Apologies

Fiona Johnstone, Adrian Hughes, Sue Brown, Lyn Loughran,
Bev Morgan, Jane Owens, Andy Styring

25

09:00 INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES

26

09:00 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Emma Dodd, Peter Brandrick, Julia Hassall, Anne Tattersall informed the Chair that they
were all involved in the IEG commissioning process.

27

09:05 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Agreed as a true record
David Armstrong informed the Board that there will be an inspection of the Adoption Service
at the start of June.

28

09:10 SEWB STRATEGY GROUP ANNUAL REPORT
Vivian Stafford updated that since the beginning of May there has been a change to the
Strategy Lead of the SEWB. Sheila Clark from Connexions has stepped down from post,
due to work changes and Vivian, 14-19 Strategic Service Manager has become the
Strategy Lead.
Performance highlights for the SEWB outcome group from 2010/11 include year on year
improvements in narrowing the gap at level 2 attainment and take up of learning diplomas.
Vivian noted that overall the picture is good with some key areas for focus.

Page 1
1 of 7

Recent Achievements include:
• Curriculum development at KS4 including Improvements in KS4 transition
• Reduction in the number of young people with LDD accessing services out of Borough,
as local provision in Wirral has increased.
• Over 1460 young people from vulnerable groups have been supported to remain in EET.
• Employability Skills Programme delivered to 147 young people
• ESF Wirral Jobs Programme moved 54 LDD young people into jobs
• Lifelong Family Learning Services increased focus to support unemployed adults
• Young Parents to Be programme delivered
• Two cohorts of young mums now being accredited
• 3 learners will go full-time to college
• 5 young mums will take part in Peer Support Programme as part of the
Teenage Pregnancy Strategy
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Wirral Apprentice Programme now on 3rd cohort, 303 apprentices
Kitemark for Education Business Excellence
4050 students in work experience
1238 students participated in enterprise acts
Post 16 attainment success rates have improved
Work is ongoing to improve property stands with focus on health of residents
Wirral Council was awarded a special recognition award for services to Apprenticeships
at the NW National Apprenticeship Awards.

Richard Longster noted that these good news stories are very encouraging.
Mark Parkinson commented that Partners and Board Members may want to explore the
possibilities of Apprenticeships.
Key Issues
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to develop provision for LDD learners
Continue momentum of attainment at Levels 2 and 3
Respond to Housing Strategy Review
ESF investment will reduce by 75% between 2010 – 13
Transfer of budget for LDD from YPLA to LA
Respond to Wolfe Review / SEN Green Paper

Gillian Thomas updated that JCP will be focussing support to young (16-19) people
claiming Job Seekers Allowance.
Councillor Sheila Clarke gave her thanks and best wishes to Sheila Clark.
Vivian added that the NEET Tiger team has now come to an end. Some of the practice
from the group has been embedded within 14 – 19 practice. Vivan thanked Mike Potter for
his work chairing this group.
The Board note the report.

2 of 72
Page

29

09:40 DISTRICT BOARD REVIEW
Julia Hassall gave a brief overview of the background of the District Boards. Their focus
would be to deliver the CYPP at a local level, through multi-agency work.
A review of the Boards took place in 2010. It was agreed that a full review would take place
after one year. A survey was sent out in early 2011. Only a third of those surveyed
responded.
Birkenhead had the highest number of positive comments from its members who value the
information sharing and the opportunity to discuss local working. Birkenhead has also built
upon the work of Tranmere Together and has members from the local neighbourhood
management group with direct resident input into how the Children and Young Peoples plan
is delivered in the Birkenhead area.
There is value in local agencies and services on an operational level coming together to
share practice and develop local services. Both Birkenhead and Wallasey Districts have
multi-agency meetings on a regular basis which attract wide representation from front-line
staff across all agencies. The co-location in South and West will further develop and
enhance such an approach.
Comments include there is a lack of clarity in the direction of the Boards, mixed views on
how effective and local DB plans are. Elected Members have been very active in chairing
and attending Boards. There is no mechanism to evidence the Boards role and
accountability. There is also a lot of duplication in reporting to the Strategy Groups.
It is therefore hard to argue that District Boards are effective and represent value for
money. In their individual reviews, no District Manager could clearly evidence that District
Boards made a difference to outcomes for children in their district.
It is therefore recommended that this District Board model ceases.
The Board endorse the report.

30

09:50 THE OFSTED UNANNOUNCED INSPECTION ACTION PLAN
Julia presented the Action Plan document which outlines the activities for addressing the
outcomes of the inspections.
This plan is a partnership plan and is monitored at the Children’s Trust Executive and
CYPD Performance Management DMT.
Phil Sherridan noted that it could go to Governors Forum.
The Board note the report.

31

10:00 ANTIBULLYING POLICY
Julia outlined the scope of the policy to cover all forms of bullying in all variety of settings
such as schools, education establishment and wider community.

3 of 7 3
Page

This will be developed and monitored by the Staying Safe Group.
David noted work is underway to support schools with bullying particularly with regard to
Facebook.
The Board endorse the policy.
32

10:10 REVIEW OF THE HEALTHY CHILD PROGRAMME
The Healthy Child Programme aim is to improve health outcomes and reduce health
inequalities for children and young people aged 0-19.
A review of this programme is to take place shortly. This underpins three areas.
• Health Promotion
• Primary Care Activity
• Good needs assessments
The Review will report to the Clinical Advisory Board to recommend commissioning
intentions for 2012 onwards and any plans to address workforce development as a
consequence of the finding.
Wirral’s Trust Board are asked to identify representatives from partner organisations to
contribute to the review.
The Board note the report.

33

10:50 CHILDREN FIRST STRATEGIC BOARD BIANNUAL REPORT
Mark Parkinson updated on this first report to the Board. The Children’s First Strategic
Board is a multi-agency Board with focus on delivering outcomes for young children and
families, especially the most vulnerable, through effective early year support and
intervention.
Mark noted that though Sure Start is synonymous with Children Centres there is a
significant provision for 0-5 year olds through PVI Sector.
Current Progress
• Improved outcomes at end of Foundation 2
• NTG at foundation stage
• Now inspection framework introduced for Children Centres. Four have been
inspected so far all `good’.
• E Start database to support monitoring and evaluation
• 3 / 4 year entitlement of 15hrs a week on a flexible basis
• 123 PVI setting have improved outdoor learning environment
• Capital grant of up to 10k to improve provision for outdoor learning
• Work to continue on ECAT ( Every Child a Talker) Programme
Anne Tattersall added that there is also an early years health programme which is a focus
for this year.

4 of 74
Page

David noted that there is a programme to further develop Children’s Centres to enable them
to provide additional services. Mark noted that all Wirral is covered by a Children’s Centre
footprint.
The Board note the report.
34

11:10 COMMISSIONING AND EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT
David Armstrong gave an update that 85 applications for EIG funding have been received.
The commissioning panel interviews are taking place on 18th – 20th May 2011.
A report will be taken to Cabinet on 2nd June 2011.
David thanked everyone involved in the commissioning process, there is a huge amount of
work involved in reading and considering applications and conducting the interview
process. Anne Tattersall noted that the level of contribution from the children and young
people on the panel was excellent.
The Board note the report.

35

11:30 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT Q4 2010/11
Tracy Little updated that there were 60 performance indicators that can be reported at the
year end. Of these 58% are rated as on or above target, 3% are amber and 17% are red.
Performance headlines include:
•

The rate of permanent exclusions from school has fallen considerably after the
“Managed Moves” process has been in place. The current rate is estimated at
0.04 compare to 0.07 for the previous year.

•

The rate of persistent absence is secondary schools has exceeded the target
and continues to fall year on year. The Wirral figure of 3.7% is lower than
National (4.2%) and Northwest (4.4%) averages.

•

The percentage of referrals to children's social care going on to initial
assessment has exceeded the annual target; this indicates that appropriate
referrals into social care and effective use of thresholds are being applied.

•

The number of participants in youth work has increased by over 60%, 8,625
young people have been involved in youth work over 2010/11 compared with
5,347 the previous year.

•

The percentage of children with Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years or more
continues to be very low highlighting sustained good practice and exit strategies.

•

Reports of antisocial behaviour and levels of vehicle nuisance have continued to
perform well against targets show a further annual reduction.

Performance Indicators that are RED, include the following:

5 of 7 5
Page

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

NI 53
Breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks
NI 55
Obesity in Reception
NI 61
Timeliness of adoptions
NI 65
Children becoming subject of a CP plan for a second or subsequent time
NI 89a Reduction of number of schools judged as requiring special measures and
improvement in time taken to come out of the category - Number of Schools
NI 105 The SEN/non-SEN gap –5 A*- C GCSE inc. English and Maths
NI 112 Percentage reduction in the under 18 conception rate
NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are NEET
Number of looked after children

Julia noted that those most complex young people have shared needs across the partners.
Debbie noted that a review of the Columbia Team working with our most vulnerable
children and families. The Board agreed this would be welcomed at the next Board.
Val McGee noted that this could be used as a learning to look at children currently having
problems to a lesser level.
The Board note the report.
36

11:40 LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT Q4 2010/11 REPORT
Tracy Little presented the last LAA report which outlines the performance of the previous
LAA indicators. Including those listed above.
The Board note the report.

37

11:45 CYPP EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)
Ann Bannister updated the background to the EIA. There is a specific duty for all public
bodies to analyse the effect of policies and practices.
Good progress made on:•
•
•
•

Increased engagement of father / grandfather is being achieved
Services developed for Black and Racial Minority communities
Improved monitoring of equality
Improvement in participation and use of CIC, EYB and YOF panels

Outline actions to be taken to Strategy Groups
Richard Longster asked how well published these successes are?
Nancy Clarkson noted that the plan is disseminated widely and published on the CTB
website and that these achievements could be circulated as a summary document.
The Board note the report.

6 of 76
Page

38

12:00 ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Jon Martin updated that, from 13th April 2011 Domestic Homicide Reviews will take place
for any domestic homicides involving people aged 16 or over. This overlaps with Children’s
Serious Case Reviews. The Chair of the CPS will oversee this.
Pauline Riding updated on the consultation of service reviews regarding provision at
Clatterbridge and Arrowe Park. Consultation ends on the 13th June, this can be done over
the Trust website.
David thanked Cllr Clarke for all her work and support with this Board and for Children and
Young People in Wirral.

39

12:00 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING: 15TH JULY 2011, 9:00 - 12:00

7 of 7 7
Page

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Page 9

CAMHS/CYPD Social Care
Partnership Teams
Bebington Town Hall Annexe
643 7490
Agenda Item 5

Wirral CAMHS/Social Care
Partnership Teams

Page 10

6 teams• Children in Need
• Looked After Children team
• Fostering Futures
• Adoption Support
• Complex Social and Communication
Support Team
• New Directions (Education Project)

The teams have been set up to
contribute to the strategic priorities
of “Children’s Services”:

Page 11

– To safely reduce the number of Looked After Children
– To maintain children within their families and
communities where this is appropriate and safe
– To provide a comprehensive CAMHS that includes
access for Children with Disabilities and those 16+
– To improve the opportunities, attainment and wellbeing of children, particularly those who experience
social disadvantage contributing to a reduction in the
numbers of Teenage Pregnancies and 16+ who are
“Not in Employment, Education or Training”.

Funding

Page 12

• 2000 LAC funded by Quality Protects money to
provide mental health services to this
population.
• Included Sexual Abuse and Trauma
• Therapeutic Fostering
• 2004 CIN, Fostering and Adoption teams
established with CAMHS specific grant
• Funding agreed to 2013
• 2008 investment in creating new posts from PCT
• 2008 PCT/ Education funding for New Directions

Children in Need Team

Page 13

•
•
•
•
•
•

2 Psychologists (1.4wte)
3 Mental Health workers (2.8wte)
2 Sexual Abuse and Trauma workers(1.5wte)
Psychiatry sessional input
Trainee psychologists and student Social Workers
Admin support (1.0wte)

Purpose of CIN Team
• To off a consultation service to Social workers

Page 14

• To offer direct therapeutic intervention to young people
and their families agreed with the Social Worker
• To contribute to initial and core assessments regarding
mental health needs of young people.
• To assist in managing risk/dangerousness by being part
of the multi-agency plan for families

Page 15

• To offer a service to children and families affected by
sexual abuse and trauma via consultation or direct work.
• To offer training in relevant mental health topics to Social
Workers and related professionals
• To offer consultation to the Adolescent Crisis Team
• To work with identified families, Section 17 of C.A.,
Section 47 investigations, subject to care proceedings

Referral Criteria
• All referrals must have an allocated Social Worker

Page 16

All referrals must be consulted on prior to referral
• The case must stay open to a Social Worker during our
involvement
• No waiting list

Looked After Children Team

Page 17

•
•
•
•
•

2 psychologists (1.4wte)
2 Mental Health Workers (2.0wte)
1 Psychology Assistant (1.0wte)
Psychiatry sessional input
Admin support (0.5wte)

Core areas of work

Page 18

• The team offers consultation and direct work to Social Workers and
foster carers
• Assessment of need
• Reports for court proceedings with ongoing casework
• Assist with rehabilitation plans
• Contributes to Care Planning and permanency plans
• Advice and consultation to residential homes for Wirral children
• Training –attachment; crisis intervention; child mental health needs;
specific disorders
• Direct work with carers and/or young people
(Children will have been in care 4 months+)

Adoption Service

Page 19

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

A team of one!
Close links to the fostering and adoption service
Pre-adoption assessments undertaken
Post-adoption support
Close links to the CAMHS LAC team
Training
Consultation model and direct work

Fostering Futures

Page 20

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Project Manager (0.5 wte)
Psychologist (0.8 wte)
2 Mental Health Therapists (2.0 wte)
1 Senior Support Worker (1.0 wte)
3 Support Workers (3.0 wte)
1 LACES teacher
Admin Support (0.8 wte)

Page 21

• Intensive and highly structured packages of foster care
to young people who have experienced multiple
placement breakdowns
• Extra training and support to experienced foster carers
• Individual therapy programmes for the young people
• Educational packages of support for schools and young
people

New Directions

Page 22

1 Psychologist (0.8wte)
1Senior Mental Health therapist (0.9wte)
1 Assistant Psychologist (1.0 wte)
To work with the 4 EBD schools to offer
highly intensive and structured
interventions for young people at risk of
exclusion

Outcomes and Benefits

Page 23

• Use of structured mental health and risk assessment
tools
• Extensive audit and evaluation
• Teams linked across the floor
• Common themes, shared information
• Good inter agency links CAMHS core services, schools,
CYPD

Page 24

• Driving forward the children at risk agenda via multiagency working and co-operation
• Shared training
• Shared risk management and safeguarding
• Contribution to the staying safe and being healthy
agendas
• Supporting education placements and promoting
learning

And a final trumpet blow….

Page 25

The recent OFSTED inspections for
Safeguarding, Looked After Children and
Adoption, saw the contributions by Health
Partnerships as OUTSTANDING.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 15th July 2011
Report to the Children’s Trust Board on Safeguarding Arrangements

1. Introduction and background
This report forms part of a regular update from the LSCB to the Children’s Trust Board on
key developments locally and nationally on regulatory reform, updates on progress of local
Serious Case Reviews and key challenges for the partnership and agencies.
2. National reform and statutory guidance
Ø The Munro Review of Child Protection was published on 10th May 2011. The review
contained a number of recommendations which will have implications for
safeguarding services and processes, not least in that a re-draft of Working Together
to Safeguard Children may follow. It is expected that the Government will respond to
the review in the late autumn at which point the LSCB will consider the implications
and plan to respond accordingly.
Ø Phase 1 of the Section 11 audit is underway. Section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004

places a statutory duty on organisations to co-operate in safeguarding children and
the audit will examine how effectively this is being achieved across Wirral. Phase 1
involves all LSCB partner agencies, except education, and the submission date is
31st August 2011. All schools, colleges and academies will complete the audit in
Phase 2 which begins in September 2011. A full report will be presented to the LSCB
in December 2011.
Ø SCR’s in Wirral – The SCRs for both Children ABCD and Child E were submitted to
both the DfE and Ofsted on 8th April 2011. We are awaiting the evaluation from
Ofsted. The multi-agency action plans are underway and being monitored by the
Executive Group. Briefing sessions for practitioners and managers have commenced
and will reinforce lessons learned. The multi-agency training calendar has been
refreshed to include learning from the reviews and specific training sessions have
been developed in direct response to the findings.
Ø SCIE (Social Care Institute of Excellence) – pilot project phase 2. Wirral is one of five
LSCBs participating in the second phase of the Learning Together Systems
Approach to SCRs. In light of the Munro Review and her recommendation that SCRs
should move towards a systems approach, this is a very positive development for the
Board. The LSCB has nominated Isobel Colquhoun and Colleen Murphy as Trainee
Lead Reviewers, Caroline McKenna as Champion and Elizabeth Hartley (LSCB
Manager) as Project Co-ordinator. The project is due to be completed in November
2011.

3. Recommendations:
3.1 The Children’s Trust Board notes the points raised in this report and facilitate any
necessary developments required to ensure standards and requirements are met.
Report Author:
Caroline McKenna
Strategic Service Manager - Safeguarding

Contact:
Phone: 6665576
Email: carolinemckenna@wirral/gov.uk

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 15th JULY 2011
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND BOARD
MEMBERSHIP ANNUAL REVIEW

1.0 Background
A Memorandum of Understanding was developed for Wirral Children’s Trust in June 2009 to
ensure that the structure and governance arrangements provide an effective and transparent
framework and clarity of roles and responsibilities for partner organisations. The original
memorandum was developed using Wirral Council Partnership Governance Framework,
Audit Commission Children’s Trusts tools and good practice in other areas. As defined in the
memorandum the membership of the board and the memorandum itself are reviewed on an
annual basis.

2.0 Annual Review
In light of this annual review initial discussions have been held regarding the establishment of
the proposed new Health and Wellbeing Boards and their relationship to the Children’s Trust
Board. The new board is in the development stage with a ‘shadow’ board due to be formed in
April 2012. As the Board develops and identified workstreams emerge a full evaluation of the
implications of this to the work of the Children’s Trust will be carried out to ensure a coordinated approach and optimisation of integration of health and children’s services.
Fiona Johnstone, The Director of Public Health who has responsibility for the new Health and
Wellbeing Board and David Armstrong, Interim Director for Children’s Services hold the
same view that at this stage of the development of the new board that the Children’s Trust
Board should continue in it’s current format and remit and that this should be reviewed as the
new Board develops.
The memorandum has been refreshed in light of national guidance and local changes. The
protocol between the Trust and the Local Safeguarding Children Board remains embedded
within the memorandum. The refreshed memorandum is now presented for endorsement by
the board.
The membership of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure the membership
remains relevant in line with local and national changes. The membership of the board has
been reviewed as requiring no necessary change at this time.

3.0 Recommendations:
3.1 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorses the refreshed memorandum.
3.2 That Wirral Children’s Trust Board consider the membership and make proposals if any
changes are deemed necessary.

Page 29

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Head of Planning and Performance

Contact:
Phone: 6664329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding

Page 30

Wirral Children’s Trust

Memorandum of Understanding
July 2011

Version 3
July 2011

Page 31

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
Contents

Foreword
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0
11.0

12.0
13.0
14.0
15.0
16.0
17.0
18.0
19.0

Introduction
Statement of Commitment
Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust
Partnership Principles
Governance and Accountability Arrangements
Decision Making
Challenge Process
Partner Roles and Responsibilities
The Scope of Involvement
The Role of the Director of Children’s Services & Lead Member
Protocol between WCT and the Local Safeguarding Children Board
11.1
Roles
11.2
LSCB Responsibilities
11.3
Children’s Trust Responsibilities
11.4
Operational Arrangements
11.5
Accountability
Leadership
Commissioning
Performance Management
Information Sharing
Risk Assessment
Equalities and Inclusion
Dispute and Conflict Resolution
Review of the memorandum of understanding
Figure 1 The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

1
1
1
1
2
2
2
3
3
4
4
4
5
5
6
6
6
6
7
7
7
7
7
8
9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.1
Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board
20.2
Terms of Reference
20.3
Membership
20.4
Meeting Arrangements

10
10
10
10
11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive
21.1
Role of Wirral Children’s Executive
21.2
Terms of Reference
21.3
Membership
21.4
Meeting Arrangements

12
12
12
12
12

22.0

Strategy Groups
22.1
Role of Strategy Groups
22.2
Terms of Reference
22.3
Membership
22.4
Meeting Arrangements

13
13
13
13
13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

14

Page 32

Foreword
Children and young people are society’s future and with them rest our hopes and aspirations.
Supporting their interest and welfare is paramount. Through Wirral Children’s Trust we will secure
an active partnership of services, parents and carers, working together to deliver the best
outcomes for all our children and young people and thus enabling them to fulfil their potential.
The purpose of this memorandum of understanding is to ensure that the structure and governance
arrangements of Wirral Children’s Trust provide an effective and transparent framework and clarity
of roles and responsibilities and that effective use is made of public resources for the benefit of
children and young people.

Councillor Ann McLachlan
Lead Member for Children’s Services

David Armstrong
Interim Director of Children’s Services

Page 33

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
1.0

Introduction

1.1

Children’s Trusts are local partnership arrangements to improve children’s well-being. They
are not defined in legislation but are underpinned by a ‘duty to co-operate in section 10 of
the Children Act 2004. This memorandum establishes Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT)
arrangements for governance, integrated working, joint planning and commissioning, and
accountabilities in order to deliver improved outcomes for Wirral’s children and young
people.

2.0

Statement of Commitment

2.1

The member organisations of WCT are committed to working together at every level to
improve the quality of life and wellbeing of all children and young people in Wirral.

3.0

Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust

3.1

“Our vision is to enable Wirral’s children, young people and families to access services
quickly in order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve their full potential”

3.2

The aim of WCT is to work across professional and agency boundaries to make a
difference to the experience and life chances of children, young people and their families.
The trust will agree priorities and actions for children’s services ensuring safeguarding
underpins all activity and provide a framework for the effective operation of local
arrangements. The framework will support a focus on preventative and early intervention
services and ensure service providers understand what is expected of them. Monitoring of
performance will inform future planning and commissioning, ensuring clear strategic
direction and providing value for money.

4.0

Partnership Principles

4.1

The members agree to work together actively to achieve the aims of WCT, on the basis of:
! visible commitment and ‘ownership’ by the various member organisations and individual
representatives;
! mutual trust and respect;
! openness and transparency;
! effective communication and accountability;
! shared ownership of resources where appropriate;
! combined expertise;
! creative and innovative solutions to problems;
! identification and sharing of best practice, based on mutual learning;
! removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity;
! clear purpose, clarity of expectations and agreed targets for action;
! effective decision-making;
! shared mechanisms for risk management, monitoring, evaluation, reviewing and
reporting on performance, progress and success;
! allowing each constituent member unobstructed access to the audit records of the
partnership, on request.

Page 34

1

5.0

Governance and Accountability Arrangements

5.1

The governance and accountability arrangements set out in this document put into
operation the duty to cooperate as set out in section 10 of the Children Act 2004.

5.2

This applies to all services provided or commissioned by WCT that support children and
young people’s 0 to 19 and specific groups of young people up to age 25.

5.3

WCT requires each partner agency to retain full responsibility for its statutory duties and
functions at all times and allows for these duties and functions to be carried out through a
system of joint planning and commissioning. This supplements existing organisational
arrangements and provides additional robust accountabilities outside of existing partner
agency arrangements.

5.4

The Board will take responsibility for setting the strategic direction for services to children,
young people and their families. This includes setting priorities, joint planning and
commissioning decisions; the alignment of resources at strategic level and agreeing service
models based on service performance and agreed service specifications.

5.5

Through the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) the Board will act as the single
coordination body for all children’s services planning and commissioning arrangements and
will be the focus for facilitating joint working leading to the integration of multi agency
services for children and young people and their families.

5.6

The Board will be responsible and accountable for the performance and commissioning
decisions made by all other planning and commissioning groups in children’s services.

5.7

The Board will be accountable to the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board for the actions it
takes in ensuring that all children and young people in Wirral are adequately safeguarded.

5.8

WCT assumes all partners accept collective responsibility and accountability for all
decisions made by the Board. However, within this collective responsibility and decisionmaking process it is recognised there are different levels of accountability and risk for
individual agencies and organisations.

6.0

Decision Making

6.1

Each partner agency accepts collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board.
All decisions will be transparent and informed by open debate, advice, performance
reporting and analysis, best practice, risk assessment and option appraisal.

6.2

Decision making will be by consensus, wherever possible, but if a consensus cannot be
reached, decisions will be taken on a simple majority of those present and voting will be by
a show of hands. In the event of a tied vote, the person chairing the meeting may exercise
a second or casting vote.

6.3

The Children’s Trust Executive (CTE) and the multi-agency Strategy Groups will be
responsible for providing advice to the Board to support the decision-making processes.

7.0

Challenge process

7.1

In exercising collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board each partner
agency will be open to challenge and scrutiny through the formal processes of the
accountable body (the Council) and of the other agencies.

Page 35

2

7.2

Progress on the delivery of the Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) will be
performance managed by the Board and an annual review will be published which is open
to challenge by any interested party.

8.0

Partner Roles and Responsibilities

8.1

The Local Authority (Council) is responsible for leading WCT and the Council in the
improvement of outcomes for all children and young people. In this respect the Council is
the accountable body for WCT. The Council is responsible for the development and
implementation of the CYPP as the single agreement between the partnership on priorities
and actions for children and young people.

8.2

The Primary Care Trust (PCT) is responsible for ensuring that health provision meets the
identified needs of children, young people and their families on behalf of WCT. The PCT is
responsible for ensuring health provision is aligned to the priorities agreed in the CYPP,
and for the commissioning of health service on behalf of WCT.

8.3

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service are responsible for ensuring that their strategic
planning encompasses the WCT vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.4

The Youth Offending Service (YOS), the police and probation service work together within
the criminal justice system. They have roles in prevention of offending and re-offending,
identification of suitable intervention programmes and identifying children and young people
at risk of harm or other poor outcomes. Through the Youth Justice Board (YJB) the Youth
Offending Service (YOS) is responsible for the production of the Youth Justice Plan. This
plan must be consistent with WCT vision and with the priorities agreed in the CYPP. The
Police are responsible for ensuring that the Local Policing Plan is consistent with the WCT
vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

8.5

The Third Sector have a significant expertise in the delivery of services and in engaging
children and families in identifying needs, innovative service models and commissioning
priorities. Third Sector representation is responsible for informing WCT on these areas of
expertise and for ensuring the sector has a voice in identifying priorities and actions in the
CYPP.

8.6

Schools, Academies, Sixth Form and Further Education Colleges, School Governor and
School Forum representatives are responsible for ensuring the sector inform and influence
priority setting in the CYPP and advise the WCT on engagement with schools in Wirral.

8.7

Job Centre Plus representatives are responsible for ensuring their organisation inform,
influence and advise the Board.

9.0

The Scope of Involvement

9.1

WCT Board will demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) to ensure that strategies are not fragmented and that different
services share priorities and thinking. WCT will inform and influence the work of the LSP in
regards to children, young people and families and ensure that these groups are reflected
in within the Local Area Agreement (LAA). It will ensure that the CYPP is consistent with
the strategic vision of the Sustainable Community Strategy.

9.2

The views of children and young people are at the centre of strategic planning and service
design. WCT Board will ensure ongoing high quality consultation with children, young
people and their families is undertaken to empower and engage the wider community.
Specific consultation will be carried out during the preparation of the CYPP.

Page 36

3

10.0

Role of the Director of Children’s Services and Lead Member

10.1

The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) is professionally accountable for the delivery
across the Every Child Matters (ECM) five outcome areas for children and young people.
The DCS together with the Lead Member (LM) has a key role in leadership, strategy and
effectiveness of services. Both work to drive forward the development of a dynamic
Children’s Trust encompassing partnership working and to integrate and transform
services.

10.2

The Lead Member exercises political accountability for the same range of services as the
Director and is expected to ensure there is a clear focus on safeguarding.

10.3

Both the DCS and LM therefore have particular and distinct responsibilities as
memberships of the Board. This entitles both the Director and Lead Member to hold other
agencies to account for the joint planning and commissioning of integrated services.

11.0

Protocol between Wirral Children’s Trust and the Local Safeguarding
Children’s Board

11.1

Roles

11.1.1 Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT) and Wirral Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) have
important but distinctive roles in keeping children safe. It is not a hierarchical relationship.
WCT is accountable for overseeing the delivery of the CYPP. In progressing this plan the
Trust is accountable for ensuring services deliver improved outcomes for children and
young people.
11.1.2 LSCB is responsible for challenging each relevant partner of WCT, through the WCT
Board, on their success in ensuring that children and young people are kept safe in the
Borough.
11.1.3 In order to ensure the complementary roles of the two bodies and the necessary
challenge the two bodies are chaired by different people.
11.1.4 The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) and the Lead Member for Children’s Services
have central roles. The DCS has lead responsibility for improving outcomes for children in
the Borough. The Lead Member is politically accountable for ensuring that the Local
Authority (LA) fulfils its legal responsibilities for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of
children and young people. The Lead Member should provide the political leadership
needed for the effective co-ordination of work with other relevant agencies with
safeguarding responsibilities. The Lead Member will also take steps to assure themselves
that effective quality assurance systems for safeguarding are in place and functioning
effectively across services areas and levels of need.
11.1.5 The DCS is a member of both WCT and LSCB. The Lead Member is Chair of WCT and is
a ‘participant observer’ of LSCB as described by statutory guidance “Working Together”
(2010).
11.1.6 The LA Chief Executive and Council Leader also have critical roles to play. The Chief
Executive must ensure that the DCS is fulfilling their managerial responsibilities for
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people; in particular by
making certain that the relationship between the CTB and the LSCB is working effectively;
that clear responsibility has been assigned within the LA and among WCT partners for
improving services and outcomes; and that targets for improving safeguarding and
progress against them are reported to the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).

Page 37

4

11.1.7 The Chief Executive and the Lead Member fulfil their responsibilities through monthly
scrutiny meeting with the Head of Branch Children’s Social Care which includes detailed
evaluation of safeguarding including performance and human resources data. In addition
there are quarterly meetings with the Lead member, LSCB Manager, Independent chair
and the Director of Children’s Services on safeguarding matters within the LSCB.
11.1.8 The wider public has an important role to play: keeping children safe is everyone’s
responsibility. WCT has actively sought the views of the local community and consulted
children young people and their families when drawing up the CYPP.
11.1.9 From April 2010 LSCB arrangements were opened up to wider public scrutiny through the
appointment to the LSCB of two lay members drawn from the local community. The aim
was to support stronger public engagement in, and understanding of children’s safety
issues and to ensure that the voice and experiences of young people would affirm the
work of LSCB by lay person representation by a member of the Children in Care Council.
11.2

LSCB Responsibilities

11.2.1 The LSCB is the decision making body for multi-agency safeguarding activity within
Wirral. It is a statutory partnership and its work is directed by statutory guidance which
dictates its functions. The DCS has a statutory responsibility for ensuring that an effective
Safeguarding Children Board is in place for the local area.
11.2.2 The work of the LSCB falls into three broad areas, all of which aim to safeguard children
and promote their welfare by:
! Protecting children from maltreatment;
! Preventing impairment of children’s health or development;
! Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe
and effective care.
11.2.3 The LSCB is well positioned through its various quality assurance processes to advise,
and where appropriate, challenge WCT arrangements. For example learning from Serious
Case Reviews, Child Death Overview Panels, section 11 self assessments and multiagency critical incident reviews.
11.2.4 From April 2011 the LSCB will publish an Annual report on the effectiveness of
arrangements locally, and the contribution and activities of each local partner for keeping
children safe as outlined in Working Together Guidance March 2010.
11.2.5 The LSCB will report on its safeguarding performance information on a quarterly basis to
the WCT and LSCB. It will make recommendations from the monitoring and evaluation
of safeguarding arrangements during the year.

11.3

Children’s Trust Responsibilities

11.3.1 WCT is the statutory local partnership brings together organisations responsible for
children’s services. It is a thematic group of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
11.3.2 It has responsibility for developing and publishing a Children and Young People’s Plan
(CYPP). The plan sets out how CT partners co-operate to improve the well-being of
children in the local area and will monitor how partners act in accordance with the plan.
11.3.3 WCT must ensure the work of all the strategy groups takes into account the safeguarding
needs of children in the development of the CYPP.
11.3.4 WCT as part of its CYPP Annual Review will make an assessment of the effectiveness of
partnership arrangements in supporting the best possible standards for safeguarding

Page 38

5

children And in its response WCT will ensure that any refresh to the plan include priorities
identified by the LSCB.
11.3.5 WCT will seek approval from LSCB regarding any proposed commissioning arrangements
which are linked to the factors which impact on safeguarding children, including
compromised parenting.

11.4

Operational Arrangements

11.4.1 The LSCB will report to the CT each quarter on the arrangements for local safeguarding
by monitoring and scrutinising activity and offer robust challenge to partners and the Trust
on its activity. It will provide an annual report setting out the assessment of local
safeguarding and its findings and make recommendations for improvement. The LSCB
will also reflect within the annual report priorities for commissioning of safeguarding
activity
11.4.2 The following people are members of both WCT and LSCB Boards. This will ensure clear
lines of communication:
! Lead Member for Children’s Services
! Director of Children’s Services
11.4.3 Once agreed by WCT Board and the LSCB this protocol will be embedded in Wirral
Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding and will be reviewed annually with the
Memorandum.

11.5

Accountability

11.5.1 The LSCB will request evidence from WCT as to its rigour in commissioning or developing
services that Safeguard children and young people. LSCB will call member organisations
of the Children’s Trust to account should it have evidence that children are not being
adequately safeguarded by one or more relevant partners. The resolution will require a
formal response/ action from WCT within a specific timeframe which will be agreed
mutually.

12.0

Leadership

12.1

Each Board member will act on behalf of their organisation as an ambassador for children
services locally, regionally and nationally. Board members will take responsibility for
ensuring the agreed actions are carried out and their agency/sector is fully informed about
the work of WCT and engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.

13.0

Commissioning

13.1

The Board, supported by the Joint Commissioning Group, will be responsible for the
identification of need and the setting of priorities to support the development of integrated
multi-agency services for all children, young people and their families. Commissioners will
ensure there is a comprehensive up to date analysis of children and young people’s needs
upon which informed decisions on the design and commissioning of services can be based.
They will coordinate the implementation of the partnerships preventative framework by
identifying shifts in activity and resource allocation that will enable the development of
planned targeted interventions.

13.2

All planning and commissioning decision making will be informed by:
! Needs analysis

Page 39

6

! Prevention priorities
! Performance
! Risk analysis
13.3

The Board will carry out an annual review of commissioning and evaluate how outcomes
and services have been improved through the alignment and pooling of resources and
jointly agreed priorities.

14.0

Performance Management

14.1

Each member of the Board will take full responsibility and accountability for the delivery of
the five ECM outcomes. The specific responsibility for the performance management of the
ECM outcomes will be held by the Children’s Trust Executive (CTE).

14.2

The Board will review progress in achieving improved outcomes for all children on a regular
basis. Management information reports will inform the Board of the progress being made in
achieving the key targets set out in the CYPP and relevant areas of Wirral Council’s
Corporate Plan.

15.0

Information Sharing

16.1

The Board will ensure that information sharing protocols are designed to enable intelligence
gathering for effective needs analysis to be carried out on a continuous basis. Information
sharing arrangements will also be developed to ensure the effective implementation of the
common assessment framework (CAF).

16.0

Risk Assessment

16.1

Risks associated with the delivery of the CYPP will be managed by the CTE and escalated
to the Board for formal assessment when necessary

17.0

Equalities and Inclusion

17.1

The Children’s Trust will operate on the basis of principles that actively value the benefits of
diversity and ensure fair treatment and equality of opportunity.

17.2

On an annual basis an equalities impact assessment will be carried out through the CTE
alongside the review of the CYPP.

18.0

Dispute and Conflict Resolution

18.1

Members of the partnership:
! Must not use their position improperly, confer on, or secure for themselves or any other
person, an advantage or disadvantage.
! Must ensure that activities are not undertaken for political purposes
! Must not unduly influence any person in the paid employment of any of the partner
agencies.

18.2

Issues of conflict within the partnership will be resolved initially by informal discussion. If
this is not successful the issue will be referred to the Chief Executive of each agency who
will meet to attempt to resolve the issue. If the issue is still not resolved appropriate
alternative dispute resolution (ADR) will be considered.

Page 40

7

19.0

Review of the Memorandum of Understanding

19.1

This memorandum of understanding will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 41

8

Page 42

Figure 1: The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

9

20.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Board

20.1

Role of Wirral Children’s Trust Board

21.1.1 The Boards role is to provide leadership for the Children’s Trust within a framework of
effective controls. Each Board member will act as an ambassador for children services
locally, regionally and nationally.
20.2

Terms of Reference

20.2.1 Board members will:
! Co-ordinate services for children and young people.
! Oversee the preparation, agreement, monitoring and review of the Children and Young
People’s Plan to meet both statutory requirements and local need.
! Ensure that children, young people and their families and carers are able to contribute
effectively to the design and delivery of services for them.
! Determine the integrated strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s
well-being with robust performance monitoring with regard to outcomes and impact.
! Agree joint commissioning strategies and be responsible for pooled budget
arrangements.
! Create a shared culture and vision amongst partners.
! Identify and celebrate best practice.
! Ensure that there is appropriate challenge where partnership working becomes
ineffective.
! Ensure that their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the Board and
engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
! Oversee the arrangements for the sharing of information about children and young
people.
! Maintain a strategic link to the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board.
! Demonstrate involvement in the Sustainable Community Strategy and clear links to
other thematic partnerships through the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
! Monitor progress on the Children and Young People’s block in the Local Area
Agreement.
! Oversee inspection arrangements and support agencies to meet the requirements of
the Ofsted Children’s Services Inspection regime.
! Oversee the development of future governance arrangements and approve such
arrangements.

20.3

Membership

20.3.1 Chair:

Lead Member for Children’s Services

20.3.2 Deputy:

To be appointed by the board

20.3.3 All partners under a statutory duty to cooperate will be represented and other persons or
bodies the CT board consider appropriate. Attendees to be nominated by their constituent
body.
20.3.4 The membership will include representatives from the following:
! Elected members
! Wirral Council
! Wirral National Health Service organisations
! Merseyside Police
! Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service

Page 43

10

! Job Centre Plus
! The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
! Primary and Secondary (including Special) Schools, Sixth Form and FE Colleges and

School and Governor Forum representatives
20.3.5 The membership will be reviewed on an annual basis.

20.4

Meeting Arrangements

20.4.1 The Children’s Trust Board will meet bi-monthly.

Page 44

11

21.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive

21.1

Role of the Children’s Trust Executive

21.1.1 The CTE will operate as an executive of the WCT Board. Whilst the strategic leadership,
accountability and agreement reside with the Board, the CTE works to support the Board
through a process of delegated and devolved decision making powers. All proposals
concerning key strategic developments will be presented to WCT Board for final approval.

21.2

Terms of Reference

21.2.1 Board members will take responsibility for:
! Delivering the identified needs of Wirral children and young people in terms of the five
outcomes in the Children Act 2004.
! Developing the strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s well-being.
! The preparation and annual review of the Children and Young People’s Plan
! Identifying best practice and proposing joint commissioning of services and identifying
shared resources.
! Annual review of joint commissioning arrangements.
! Implementing service improvement priorities.
! Establishing the evidence base behind development proposals.
! Ensuring that agreed actions are carried out.
! Ensuring that the cross agency strategy groups are fully informed about the work of
WCT and are engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
! Disseminating a shared culture and vision amongst partners in the working groups.
! Performance management.
! Preparing for and evaluating practice to inform inspection arrangements including the
Ofsted led annual Children’s Services Assessment.

21.3

Membership

21.3.1 Chair:

Director of Children’s Services

21.3.2 Deputy:

To be nominated by the Executive

21.3.3 The membership includes the Strategy Lead for each multi-agency strategy group and
invited representatives.

21.4

Meeting Arrangements

21.4.1The CTE will meet bi-monthly.

Page 45

12

22.0

Strategy Groups

22.1

Role of the Strategy Groups

22.1.1 The multi-agency strategy groups (SG) are linked to the five ECM outcome areas for
children and young people. They own the CYPP and are responsible for its delivery. They
are accountable to WCT Board and the CTE.

22.2

Terms of Reference

22.2.1 The Strategy Groups are responsible for:
! The monitoring and reporting on progress. Issues regarding their respective
performance indicators, CYPP priorities, allocated tasks groups and any other locally
based targets agreed by the partnership.
! Receive information from and respond to requests from other groups and stakeholders.
! Make quarterly performance progress reports highlighting areas of poor performance,
issues and risk.
! Develop opportunities for multi-agency involvement and networking to share best
practice
! Provide support and information to other groups within the Trust.
! Maintain effective arrangements to consult with children, young people, families and
carers, act on the results of the consultation and provide feedback.

22.3

Membership

22.3.1 Chair: Outcome area Strategy Lead
22.3.2 Multi-agency representation related to each outcome area, including family
representation.

22.4

Meeting Arrangements

22.4.1 To be agreed by each group.

Page 46

13

23.0

Wirral Children’s Trust Support

23.1

The Children’s Services Department Planning and Resources Branch will provide the
following key functions to WCT Board and the CTE:
! Agenda.
! Minutes.
! Performance management reporting arrangements.
! Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the CT governance framework.
! If required send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to
governance reporting and standard agenda items.

Page 47

14

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 20 JULY 2011
EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT – OPEN COMMISSIONING

1.0

Background

1.1

This report sets before the Children’s Trust the recommendations from the recent
commissioning of the Early Intervention Grant. This grant was introduced by the
governments and replaced a number of funding regimes including, Aiming High for
Disabled Children, 0-19, Sure Start and Positive Activities for Young people.
Although the grant was not ring fenced it was expected that it would be used to pay
for activities previously covered by the now defunct funding streams. This report
sets out the proposals to cover the following priority areas:
•
•
•

Priority Area 1 Parenting/ Compromised Parenting
Priority Area 2 Short Breaks for Disabled Children
Priority Area 3 Risk taking Behaviour in Children, Young People and Families

2.0

Introduction

2.1

This report outlines the recent tendering exercise for services and support to
children, young people and families via the Early Intervention Grant. Based on the
outcomes of this tendering exercise the report makes recommendations for
providers of these services and seeks approval from Cabinet to proceed to offering
contracts totalling £2,821,828

2.2

From 2011/2012 the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) replaced specific funding of a
range of programmes supporting children, young people and families:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

0-19
Think Family
Teenage Pregnancy
Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP)
Sure Start
Youth Opportunity Fund
Youth Crime Action Plan
Young People’s Alcohol and Substance Misuse
Aiming High for Disabled Children (AHDC)

Funding for this grant will run from 2011 until 2015 (although later allocations have
still to be confirmed). The guidance from the Department for Education indicates
that the EIG will support the following services:
•
•
•
•

Sure Start Children’s’ Centres
Short breaks for disabled children
Targeted support for vulnerable young people
Targeted support for families with multiple problems.

Page 49

The government also announced that while the EIG will fund these programmes the
grant is not ring fenced and local decision making would determine priorities and
commissioning requirements.
2.3

As part of the 2011-12 budget for the Children and Young Peoples Department, the
EIG has been identified as being £17.9m. The EIG includes a range of
commitments including Surestart, short breaks for disabled children (leading on
from Aiming High for Disabled Children) and Connexions. After a detailed review of
these commitments for 2011/2012 it has been identified that £2,556,828 was
available for open commissioning of services. A number of partners are also
making available funds to commission services as part of this exercise. This
includes NHS Wirral (£100k), DAAT (£40k), Children and Young People
Department Core Budget (£55k), Teenage Pregnancy (£40k) and Wirral Partnership
Homes (£30k to be confirmed). In total £2,821,828 is available to commission
services.

2.4

Within Wirral there is now more intelligence and robust data to inform and support
decision making than has previously been available. Returns from the Common
Assessment Framework (CAF), Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), and
ASSET the Youth Offending Service Evaluation tool kit and returns from internal
monitoring are providing detailed information which is informing priority setting.
Following consideration of the intelligence available, commissioning themes to act
as a framework for commissioning priorities are as follows:
•
•
•

Early intervention and support for families in difficult circumstances (parenting
and compromised parenting). (Priority area 1)
Children and Young People with Disabilities. (Priority area 2)
Improving behaviour in Children, Young People and Families. (Priority area 3)

These priorities were agreed by Wirral Children’s Trust and support the goals in the
Your FAMILY: Children and Young People section of the Councils Corporate Plan
2011-2014. A range of evidence based service areas were identified for each of the
three priority areas above – these are detailed in Appendix 1.
2.5

Early Intervention Grant funded services will be delivered within the following
principles:
•
•
•
•

2.6

Early intervention: to intervene to stop the problem developing.
Early prevention: acting proactively to ensure that problems do not arise in
the first place.
Early identification: identifying problems early or identifying the risk of
problems early.
Personalisation: the provision of greater personalised support.

In Wirral, the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) will be used to drive service delivery
which is prompt, appropriate, effective and planned with the family and child.
Planning will be based on the principle of Early Intervention and Prevention, which
is one of the principles underpinning Wirral’s Children and Young People’s Plan. A
key outcome of the commissioning of the EIG will be services working together with
shared priorities to ensure there is no duplication or gap in services. Providers will
have a duty to engage with Common Assessment Framework / Team Around The
Child processes to ensure better outcomes.

Page 50

2.7

With the support of the Corporate Procurement Team an open tender exercise was
started on 15 February 2011 and through its various stages final evaluation of
tenders has recently been completed.

2.8

20 providers are being recommended to deliver 39 different services, with total 12
month contract value of £2,821,828. A full range of provision has been identified
and providers have been recommended. This competitive process has resulted in
more activity and better targeting of services to vulnerable children, young people
and families for families than is currently provided. Details of recommendations for
each service area are provided in section 2 below.

2.9

An EIG Forum will be established that will bring together providers, commissioners
and other partners to begin an ongoing dialogue about delivery and development
across the whole of the EIG. This will help to identify further opportunities for
improving outcomes for vulnerable children, young people and families. This will be
in addition to normal contract monitoring arrangements.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

3.1

Cabinet approved the following providers identified for the range of services
included in the Early Intervention Grant resulting from an open tendering exercise,
as detailed in the tables below. The Children’s Trust is asked to endorse this
decision:
Table 1: Proposed Providers for Priority Area 1 Parenting/reducing
compromised Parenting

Proposed
Provider
Homestart
(North Wirral)

Priority and
Service Area
PA1.1
Home Visiting 0-5

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

Support 250
families.

Voluntary
sector
provider

Action for
Children

PA1.2.1A
Triple P groups

15 programmes

Action for
Children

PA1.2.1B
Nurturing
Programme

8 programmes

Support for families on a one
to one basis in their own
homes using a whole family
approach where at least one
child is under 5. Service
provided at earliest
opportunity to prevent
difficulties from escalating
into crises
To provide evidence based
parenting programme Triple
P Teens to parents and
carers in a range of venues
across Wirral.
To provide evidence based
parenting programme
Nurturing Programme to
parents and carers in a
range of venues across
Wirral.

Page 51

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Proposed
Provider
Action for
Children

Priority and
Service Area
PA1.2.1C
Strengthening
Families 10-14 yrs

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

6 programmes

To provide evidence based
parenting programme
Strengthening Families 10 to
14 years to parents and
carers in partnership with
local EBD Secondary
Schools.
To provide evidence based
parenting programme
Strengthening
Families/Strengthening
Communities to parents and
carers of BME children and
young people in a range of
venues across Wirral.
To provide an intensive
family support service with
the assertive delivery of
support service with
sanctions and possible
enforcement action to
increase a family’s
motivation to change their
behaviour.
Home Visiting Service,
individual staff support
families at home and offer
parenting groups in the
community to develop skills
and social networks
Support for children who
have experienced domestic
violence, skills building to
resolve conflict, emotional
support
Support for young women
who have and are
experiencing domestic
violence by providing
intensive support to skills
building to resolve conflict
and emotional support
Support Black and Minority
ethnic children with a
particular focus upon
children who are
experiencing the negative
effects of social isolation,
family stress and racial
harassment.

Voluntary
sector
provider

Action for
Children

PA1.2.1D
Strengthening
Families/Strengthe
ning Communities

5 programmes

Catch 22

PA1.2.2 Intensive
Family Support

Support 80 families.

Catholic
Children’s
Society

PA1.2.3 Home
Visiting 5-19 yrs

Support 120
families.

Leapfrog
Zero Centre

PA1.2.4A Domestic
Violence 5-13 yrs

Support 80 families.

Barnardos

PA1.2.4B Domestic
Violence 16-18 yrs

Support 75 young
women.

Wirral Multi
Cultural
Organisation

PA1.2.5 BME

Support 100
families.

Page 52

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Voluntary
sector
provider

Proposed
Provider
Barnardos

Priority and
Service Area
PA1.2.6 Young
Carers

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

Support 150 young
carers.

To provide services to
children and young people
who have been identified as
young carers with additional
or complex needs as a result
of their responsibilities. To
reduce their caring role to
increase positive outcomes
by working within a multi
agency framework

Voluntary
sector
provider

Table 2: Proposed Providers for Priority Area 2 Children and Young People
with Disabilities
Proposed
Provider
Activate Training

Priority and
Service Area
PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

Units of activity

Crossroads Care
Cheshire West
and Wirral

PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

8 weekends per
year for up to 20
children

Crossroads Care
Cheshire West
and Wirral

PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities
PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities
PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities
PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

2 hours per week
for up to 20
children

PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

Weekday- 2 hours
session x 28
weeks

Crossroads Care
Cheshire West
and Wirral
Crossroads Care
Cheshire West
and Wirral
Wirral Autistic
Society

Wirral Council
(Sport
Development
Unit)

3 x 3hours
sessions per week
x 37 weeks

Description of Service

Sector

Creative and performing arts
workshops for young people
with disabilities. There will be
weekday evening and
weekend provision with two
split groups, aged 8-13 and
13-19.
Weekend stays for children
aged 8 to 19 with disabilities
at Barnstondale Outdoor
Centre

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

After school activity club for
13-19 year olds

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

3 x 2 hour sessions After school club for children
per week x 39
with complex health needs
weeks

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

4 x 4hour sessions
x 48 weeks

Weekend activity sessions for
children aged 8-18 with
complex needs.

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

208 x 3 hour
sessions per year

Activity clubs for children
aged 7-18 with a diagnosis of
Autistic Spectrum Condition
or other associated social
and communication
difficulties.
Sporting activities for children
aged 5-19 with disabilities.
There will be weekday
evening and weekend
provision with two split
groups, aged 5-14 and 15-19.

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Weekend- 2 hour
sessions x 46
weeks

Page 53

Statutory
Provider

Proposed
Provider
Wirral Play
Council

Priority and
Service Area
PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

Units of activity

Wirral Resource
Centre and Toy
Library

PA2.1 Weekday
and Weekend
Leisure/Play
activities

208 x 2 hour
sessions

Wirral Autistic
Society

PA2.2 Sitting
Service

2392 sessions

Wired

PA2.3 Direct
Payment Support
Scheme

21 hours per week

Wirral Council
(Family Support
Team)

2.4 ASD
Specialised
Support

1935 sessions

5 x 2-3 hours
sessions per week
x 47 weeks

Description of Service

Sector

Playscheme for children aged
5-19 with disabilities.
Weekday, weekend and
holiday sessions split
according to age and needs
of children.
Weekday evening and
weekend play sessions for
children aged 0-8 with a
diagnosis of Autistic
Spectrum Condition or other
associated social and
communication difficulties.
Sitting Service for children
and young people with a
diagnosis of Autistic
Spectrum Condition,
associated difficulties or
traits.
Support service to actively
support with recruitment of
Personal Assistants and the
Human resources issues
related to recruitment and
employment.
Individualised one to one
service for young people who
have Autistic Spectrum
Disorder and Severe
Learning Difficulties and may
display challenging
behaviour.

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Statutory
Provider

Table 3: Proposed Providers for Priority Area 3 Improving behaviour in
Children, Young People and Families.
Proposed
Provider
Wirral Council
(Youth & Play
Service)

Priority Area

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

P 3.1A : Risk
taking Behaviour in
young people ages
8-13

416 x 2 hours
sessions

Enhanced outreach for
young people aged 8-13.
This will support vulnerable
young people in the
transition period from
primary to secondary
school.

Statutory
Provider

Page 54

Proposed
Provider
Merseyside Fire
and rescue
Service

Priority Area

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

PA3.1B : Risk
taking Behaviour in
Young people ages
13-19

4x 12 week
courses

Statutory
Provider

Merseyside Fire
and Rescue

PA3.1B : Risk
taking Behaviour in
Young people ages
13-19

5x 12 week
courses

Wirral Youth &
Play Service

PA3.1B : Risk
taking Behaviour in
Young people ages
13-19

1049 x 2 hour
sessions

Grange Baptist

PA3.1B : Risk
taking Behaviour in
Young people ages
13-19

48 x 3 hour
sessions

Wirral Council
(Youth and Play
Service)

PA3.1B : Risk
taking Behaviour in
Young people ages
13-19
PA3.2 Advice and
Guidance 1:1

31 x 3 hour
sessions

PA3.2 Advice and
Guidance Open
Sessions

322 x 3 hour
sessions

Beacon Project – targeted
group project which will
operate on a referrals basis
and be part of a response to
the needs of young people
identified as needing
additional support. This will
operate during term time
and will accept referral from
schools, training providers,
Connexions and other
stakeholder organisations.
Life Project: This will
operate in holiday periods
and will also tackle anti
social behaviour. Sessions
will be delivered in identified
hot spot areas.
Enhanced Outreach – This
programme will be part of a
programme of outreach
engaging with young people
aged 13-19. Provision will
be targeted at identified hot
spot areas.
Week-end work – This
programme will operate from
Grange Baptist church in
Birkenhead. This project
operates on a Saturday
night and works with young
people seeking alternative
provision. It is envisaged
that 80-100 young people
will use this project every
week-end
Artsmark Plus- Targeted
arts programme which will
operate alongside enhanced
outreach 13-19
One to one advice sessionsthese will be provided
across the authority in a
variety of venues. This will
enable individual young
people to access personal
support.
Open Advice Sessionsthese will be provided as
part of a universal
programme to ensure young
people have advice on a
range of issues.

Wirral Council
(Youth and Play
Service)

Wirral Council
(Youth and Play
Service)

483 x 1 hour
sessions

Page 55

Statutory
Provider

Statutory
Provider

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Statutory
Provider

Statutory
Provider

Statutory
Provider

Proposed
Provider
Wirral Council
(Sports
Development)

Priority Area

Units of activity

Description of service

Sector

PA3.3A Accredited
Opportunities Sports

320 x 3 hour
sessions

Statutory
Provider

Wirral Council
(Sports
Development)

PA3.3A Accredited
Opportunities Sports

288 x 3 hour
sessions

Wirral Council
(Youth and Play
Service) &
Partners

PA3.3A Accredited
Opportunities -Arts

1681 x 2.5 - 3 hour
sessions

Involve North
West

5 x 3 hour events

Involve North
West

Priority Area 3.3B
(PA3.3B) Big
Nights Wirral's Got
Talent
PA3.3B Big Nights
Big Band

Youth Sports Nights Weekends/ Hot spot areas : to
provide sports nights on
Friday and Saturday nights
in response to identified hot
spot areas.
Youth Sports provision
Holiday periods/ Hot spot
areas: This will be planned
holiday provision in each
district during holiday
periods.
Accredited Opportunities to
be provided across Wirral
and by other partners. This
will be a universal provision
that will be part of any
planned intervention with
young people. This
approach is in line with the
need to have universal
positive activities for young
people to engage as the
need for intensive support is
reduced. This provision will
operate Wirral wide and in
voluntary and statutory
settings.
Wirral’s Got Talent – four
District heats and one final.

5 x 3 hour events

Big Band Nights – four
district heats and one final

Involve North
West

PA3.3B Big Nights
Djing

5 x 3 hour events

Djing Competition – four
district heats and one final

Involve North
West

PA3.3B Big Nights
Discos

4 x 3 hour events

Four discos – one in each
District

Wirral Council
(Youth & Play)

PA3.4 Risk Taking
workshops

60 x 3 hour
workshops

Sixty Risk taking Behaviour
Workshops. These will be
developed in response to
identified local need. The
workshops will operate in a
variety of settings and seek
to engage vulnerable young
people.

Voluntary
Sector
Provider
Voluntary
Sector
Provider
Voluntary
Sector
Provider
Statutory
Provider

Page 56

Statutory
Provider

Statutory&
Voluntary
Providers

Voluntary
Sector
Provider

Summary:
•
•
•

Priority Area 1 Parenting/reducing compromised Parenting: £1,587,528
(£1,322,500 EIG, £265,028 partnership contributions)
Priority Area 2 Children and Young People with Disabilities: £779,772
Priority Area 3 Improving behaviour in Children, Young
People and Families.
£454,528
TOTAL RECOMMENDED AMOUNT
(inc. £265,028 partnership)

£2,821,828

4.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

4.1

The priorities and services have been based on detailed needs analysis and
consideration of evidenced based delivery. An open procurement process has
been used to identify providers that perform best against the agreed evaluation
criteria. The recommendations deliver the full range of services to support
comprehensive delivery of the vision of the Early Intervention Grant.

5.0

BACKGROUND TO EACH PRIORITY AREA AND KEY ISSUES

5.1

Priority Area 1 Parenting/reducing compromised Parenting. (Appendix 1 provides
specific information about each priority) This priority area builds on the successful
outcomes of the 0-19 Parenting and Prevention commissioning in 2010-2011. It is
targeted at supporting children, young people and families whose needs are not
fully met by universal services. It is anticipated that all services will be delivered
Wirral wide whilst reflecting patterns of need and risk within the community.

5.2

In order for services to be successful they will need to support vulnerable children,
young people and adults. Better outcomes will be secured for children by
identifying families at risk of poor outcomes and
•

providing support at the earliest opportunity

•

strengthen the ability of family members to provide care and support to each
other

5.3

Services will provide targeted parenting programmes and one-to-one support to
help parents develop their skills and confidence in managing children’s behaviour.

5.4

Within this priority area activity has been focussed through use of the data
intelligence provided by the Team around the Child and the Common Assessment
Framework. This has then enabled activity and services to be targeted at more
vulnerable families. More Black and Minority Ethnic Families and Young Carers will
be able to access services.

5.5

Priority Area 2 Children and Young People with Disabilities. Building on the very
successful outcomes of the Aiming High for Disabled Children programme each
local authority now has a statutory duty to follow the ‘The Breaks for Carers of
Disabled Children Regulations.

Page 57

These regulations state:
A local authority must provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, a range of
services which is sufficient to assist carers to continue to provide care or to do so
more effectively. In particular, the local authority must provide, as appropriate, a
range of:
•
•
•
•
5.6

day-time care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere,
overnight care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere,
educational or leisure activities for disabled children outside their homes, and
services available to assist carers in the evenings, at weekends and during
the school holidays.

A short breaks service should:
•

Be based on a needs assessment of the local disabled child population,
taking into account the voice of disabled children, young people and their
families (participation and feedback);

•

Use fair, understandable and transparent eligibility criteria that enable short
breaks to be accessed easily by families.

•

Offer reliable and regular local short break provision, tailored to families
needs. These could include:

•

Provide and monitor positive outcomes for children by promoting friendships
and by encouraging social activities, new experiences and supportive
relationships with carers.

•

Ensure that provision is available on a planned and regular basis and at the
times when families and young people, need breaks.

•

Provide fit for purpose and age appropriate.

•

Promote information about services available appropriately and regularly to
families.

5.7

Priority Area 3 Risk Taking behaviour in Children, Young People and Families. The
services/ activities covered by Priority Area Three are expected to target young
people identified as being at risk of engaging in negative behaviour. Now funded
through the Early Intervention Grant this was previously commissioned through the
Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP). The priorities driving the
commissioning were gathered from a number of areas including the Common
Assessment Framework (CAF) returns, information from the Youth Offending
Service and the Asset assessment tool and data gathered to underpin the priorities
in the Children and Young People’s Plan identify the priorities.

5.8

Underpinning the work has been the requirement to ensure that as few young
people as possible would require intensive support. The services/ activities areas
recommended for commissioning under Priority Area Three are a mix of targeted
and universal support services and activities.

Page 58

The imperative of the mix of provision is to ensure that if young people are in need
of intensive support they are assessed and supported to the appropriate
intervention. It is important that young people are moved from a high to low level of
need to one of self managing and accessing universal services. The commissioning
process has included in its application process, questions to test the organisation’s
understanding of targeted and universal services and their understanding of how
their service contributed to the Early Intervention Strategy.
5.9

Process: A full open tendering process was used to identify proposed providers.
This was undertaken with full support and guidance of the Corporate Procurement
Unit. The approach utilised was to use a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire stage
(PQQ) to identify providers to Invite To Tender stage (ITT).

5.10

Organisations proceeding to the ITT stage completed full tender documents
including detailed method statements and pricing schedules. Each Priority Area
was evaluated by its own panel. Each panel had a core membership of:
•
•
•
•

Children and Young People’s Department
NHS Wirral
Link Forum
Young people or Parent/Carers

Priority Area 3 had additional membership from Merseyside Police and Merseyside
Fire and Rescue Service.
5.11

Panel members were fully involved in the evaluation of each tender including
interviewing each provider.

5.12

A total of 34 organisations submitted at least one tender resulting in a total of 101
tenders across all priority areas being evaluated.

5.13

Providers scoring the highest overall score through the evaluation have been
selected as the proposed provider for each service area. For some service areas
e.g. PA2.1 Weekday and Weekend Leisure/Play activities it is necessary to ensure
that we have a suitable spread of provision by type, location and user group. In
these cases providers have been proposed where they are evaluated more highly
than other providers offering a comparable service.

5.14

Evaluation was split between Quality (80%) and Price (20%), which was agreed
with Corporate Procurement. The rationale for this split is that the EIG is about
early intervention and the quality of the intervention is of paramount importance, not
least as the better the quality of the intervention the less likely the needs are to
escalate and become more pressing and expensive. In addition, the services are
outcome focussed and they will not all be identical so direct comparison of costs in
all cases is difficult. 20% of the evaluation relates to cost and it will mean that for
similar services with comparable quality, the most cost effective is likely to be
evaluated more highly overall. Quality was determined by evaluating method
statements, interview and presentation.

Page 59

6.0

RELEVANT RISKS

6.1

All children, young people of families who currently receive a service or intervention
will continue to receive this support, albeit in some cases with a different provider.
Indeed, the EIG approach and using open procurement has increased the capacity
we have locally to support vulnerable children, young people and families.

6.2

Commissioners will work closely with existing providers and any new providers to
ensure continuity of support and to facilitate effective and smooth transition of
services.

7.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1

The contracts for the provision of services funded by the previous grants streams
had already been extended by six months until the 30th June 2011 in line with a
cabinet decision. To extend contracts further could open the Council to challenge
about transparency and in addition services needed to be re-provided and
redesigned to meet the overall vision of the EIG, as opposed to the different visions
of the now ended grant programmes.

8.0

CONSULTATION

8.1

The priority themes were discussed and agreed by the Wirral Children’s Trust
Board. Services users, young people and parents/carers were consulted as part of
focus groups to help finalise the service specifications and the aspects of the tender
evaluation. Similarly young people and parents/carers were fully involved in all
aspects of the evaluation process, including the recommendations.

9.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

9.1

This has been an open procurement process and the majority of the investment is
to voluntary, community and faith groups. In addition the Link Forum has provided
representatives who were fully involved in all stages of the evaluation process and
across all priority areas, including the recommendations.

10.0

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1

This report’s recommendations are to the value of £2,821,828.

11.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

11.1

The priority areas and service areas have been based upon review of local need
and identifying suitable evidenced based interventions. Significantly a specific
focus of the Early Intervention Grant on Wirral is to target vulnerable and at risk
children, young people and families’ e.g. young carers, black and minority ethnic
families and victims of domestic violence. Equality was specifically identified as
part of the evaluation of all tenders.

11.2

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
(a) Is an EIA required?
(b) If ‘yes’, has one been completed?

Yes
Yes (10/1/11)

Page 60

REPORT AUTHOR:

Maureen McDaid
EIG Commissioning Lead
telephone: (0151) 666 4508
email: maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Early Intervention Grant Priority Areas.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62

Appendix 1: Early Intervention Grant – Priority Areas:
Priority Area 1 – Parenting and Compromised Parenting:
Services will need to provide for vulnerable children, young people and
adults to secure better outcomes for children by identifying families at risk of
poor outcomes by
• providing support at the earliest opportunity
• strengthen the ability of family members to provide care and support to
each other
This can be done through open access and targeted parenting programmes
and one-to-one support to help parents develop their skills and confidence in
managing children’s behaviour. It is anticipated that all services can
potentially be delivered Wirral wide whilst reflecting patterns of need and risk
within the community.

PA1.1 - Early Intervention Home Visiting – Age Range 0 - 5
The service will support families with children under the age of five years and
will offer flexible support in the home for families in Level 2 (targeted) of the
Continuum of Need. This will include evenings and weekends when required.
Demonstrating excellent links with key partners (particularly Children’s
Centres, schools and community groups) is an essential requirement for
success. The service will offer support on a wide range of subjects, including
housing, debt management, parenting, child behaviour, healthy lifestyles,
including sexual health and child development. Expertise and experience in
the early years is essential as well as a good understanding of the CAF and
TAC structure within Wirral.

PA1.2- Targeted Family Support – Age Range 5 – 19
Targeted family support services will need to use a model which has been
subject to a formal evaluation approach and be required to develop provision
in line with the refreshed parenting and family support strategy.
(http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/childrens-services/childrens-socialcare/children-and-family-care/parenting-and-family-support) These services can be
provided either on a one-to-one through a dedicated key worker or in a group
setting and will be required to work within the CAF/Team around the Child
framework. A particular focus for this service area will be accessible
provision in the evenings, and the inclusion of parents who are less likely to
engage, with reference to fathers, parents with mental health problems,
parents with learning difficulties/disabilities, teenage parents/to be and
domestic violence.

Page 63

PA1.2.1 - Evidenced Based Parenting Programmes/Groups –
(Targeted at 5-13 / 13-19 age groups)
The service will provide one or more of the following evidence based
parenting programmes such as Triple P Teens, Family Links, Incredible
Years, Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities, and
Strengthening Families 10-14. This is to help improve parenting skills through
increasing the accessibility of evidence based parenting programmes for
children and young people at risk of negative outcomes.
This service will be focused on the inclusion of parents who are less likely to
engage, with specific needs identified and with reference to fathers, parents
with mental health problems, parents with learning difficulties/disabilities,
teenage parents/to be and domestic violence.
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age range/s they
are able to support.
a) Age Range 5 – 13
b) Age Range 13 – 19
c) Age Range 0 – 19 (across the whole age range)

PA 1.2.2 - Intensive Family Support
Using a model which has been subject to a formal evaluation approach (e.g.
Family Intervention Project or equivalent) this service will be required to
provide intensive support to vulnerable families and in particular those facing
legal actions, evictions or who are affected by longstanding worklessness and
poverty. Referral routes may include anti-social behaviour team, youth
offending service, social landlords, social care etc)
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age range/s they
are able to support.
a) Age Range 5 – 13
b) Age Range 13 – 19
c) Age Range 0 – 19 (across the whole age range)

PA1.2.3 - Home Visiting
The service will support families across a broad age range (5-19) working
within the CAF/Team around the Child framework and will offer flexible
support through home visiting. This will include evening and weekends and
agencies will have to demonstrate excellent links with key partners particularly
area teams, youth offending service, schools and community groups.
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age range/s they
are able to support.
a) Age Range 5 – 13

Page 64

b) Age Range 13 – 19
c) Age Range 0 – 19 (across the whole age range)

PA1.2.4 Domestic Violence Support
Supporting children aged 5-13 and young people, including young
parents/parents to be aged 16-18 who have been affected by, or victims of
domestic violence. The long term preventative aim is to break the cycle of
domestic violence with shorter term aims to enable children and young
parents/parents to be to develop their own behaviour
management/strategies. The service needs to demonstrate clear exit
strategies for the children, young people and families including supporting
them to develop healthy relationships within supportive social networks.

PA1.2.5 Black and Minority Ethnic Families Support
The service is primarily intended to assist Black and minority ethnic children
with a particular focus upon children who are experiencing the negative
effects of social isolation, family stress and racial harassment. Families will be
encouraged and supported to make more effective links with the other
agencies that provide services to meet their specific needs. The service
provided will also work with the parents/carers of the referred children
engaging them in activities to encourage better communication between
parent and child, strengthening family relationships and develop skills and
support networks.
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age
range/s they are able to support.
a) Age Range 5 – 13
b) Age Range 13 – 19
c) Age Range 0 – 19 (across the whole age range)

PA1.2.6 Support for Young Carers
This service will provide a “whole family” approach to ensure that children and
young people who find themselves in the caring role are not disadvantaged
and ensure that their attainment of health and social wellbeing is maintained.
A particular focus of this service will be early intervention and prevention
through a co-ordinated approach in partnership with schools, health and Adult
Social Services.
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age
range/s they are able to support.
a) Age Range 5 – 13
b) Age Range 13 – 19
c) Age Range 0 – 19 (across the whole age range)

Page 65

Priority Area 3 – Children and Young People with Disabilities:
Following the successful outcomes of the Aiming High for Disabled Children
programme each local authority now has a statutory duty to follow the ‘The
Breaks for Carers of Disabled Children Regulations coming into force on 1st
April 2011.
These regulations are currently in draft but state:
A local authority must provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, a range of
services which is sufficient to assist carers to continue to provide care or to do
so more effectively.
In particular, the local authority must provide, as appropriate, a range of:(a) Day-time care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere.
(b) Overnight care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere.
(c) Educational or leisure activities for disabled children outside their
homes.
(d) Services available to assist carers in the evenings, at weekends and
during the school holidays.
To meet these regulations Wirral Council are aiming to procure a range of
short break services to meet family needs.
A short breaks service should:
§

Be based on a needs assessment of the local disabled child population,
taking into account the voice of disabled children, young people and their
families (participation and feedback).

§

Use fair, understandable and transparent eligibility criteria that enable
short breaks to be accessed easily by families.

§

Offer reliable and regular local short break provision, tailored to families
needs. These could include.

§

Provide and monitor positive outcomes for children by promoting
friendships and by encouraging social activities, new experiences and
supportive relationships with carer.

§

Ensure that provision is available on a planned and regular basis and at
the times when families and young people, need breaks.

§

Provide fit for purpose and age appropriate.

Page 66

•

Promote information about services available appropriately and regularly
to families.

PA2.1 – Weekday and Weekend Leisure / Play Activities
These will offer short breaks for children with disabilities on a regular basis,
providing fun activities and the opportunity to socialise with children.

PA2.2 – Sitting Service
Provide sitting services that supports parents with short breaks within the
family home.

PA2.3 – Direct Payment Support Scheme
Provide a scheme that supports parents with employment issues and will
facilitate the recruitment of personal assistants.

PA2.4 – ASD Specialised Support
To support families of children and young people with ASD and challenging
behaviours to have a short break which will provided by a highly
individualised support package, which will involve working in the family home,
in the community and in other venues.

Page 67

Priority Area 3 (PA3)
Behaviour in Children, Young People and Families.
Wirral Council’s Children and Young People’s Department is looking to work
in partnership with organisations that can provide exciting and stimulating
youth support services that will challenge and inspire the young people of
Wirral and provide them with innovative opportunities to develop their
potential. Activities should provide young people, including those who are
vulnerable and at risk, with diversionary activities and engage them in a Youth
Offer which contributes to their personal development.
Providers will be expected to run activities that engage young people aged
13-19 in positive activities. It is expected that any programmes will be
complementary to the other commissioned activities aimed at providing
appropriate support to children, families and young people. Funded by the
early Intervention Grant, activities will be provided in the evenings and at
week-ends and in school holidays. Successful organisations will be those that
demonstrate a practical effective response to the needs of young people.
Organisations will have to demonstrate how young people have been involved
in planning for service provision.

These activities / interventions have been pulled into the following Service
Areas.

PA3.1 – Risk Taking Behaviour
(Crime/ Anti-Social behaviour/ Substance Misuse/ Risk of
entering the Judicial System)
It is anticipated that organisations will be offering opportunities that will
encourage young people to engage in positive behaviour and achieve in
school, employment or training. Providers will target young people who
engage in risk taking behaviour which is evident in substance misuse, sexual
activity and anti social behaviour and youth crime. Adopting an early
intervention approach, organisations will be expected to provide activities
which engage young people before they progress to a level whereby they will
require intensive support.
Applicants within this Service Area will be required to identify which age
range/s they are able to support.
a) Age Range 8 – 13
b) Age Range 13 – 19

Page 68

PA3.2 – Advice / Guidance / Support Services
Providers will be expected to provide Information/ advice to young people.
This will be provided on a one to one basis and organisations will be expected
to provide appropriate support to young people and access them to more
targeted support as necessary. This may involve supporting young people in
issues such as homelessness, sexual health, substance misuse, school
attendance, family breakdown.
Age Range – 13 - 19

PA3.3 – Youth Arts / Big Nights / Youth Activities / Accredited
Opportunities.
Organisations will be expected to provide Big Nights such as Discos or Band
Nights, Youth Arts activities and other diversionary activities such as the Duke
of Edinburgh Award, and other sporting opportunities. Providers will be
expected, where appropriate, to provide activities that can be accredited.
Age Range – 13 - 19

PA3.4 – Workshops (Risk Taking Behaviour / Substance
Misuse).
Workshops will be provided as part of the early preventative agenda to
develop in young people an awareness of the consequences of risk taking
behaviour while also developing resilience and protective behaviours.
Age Range – 13 - 19

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Agenda Item 10
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 15th July 2011
Child Poverty Event June 2011

1.0 Background
The Wirral Child Poverty Consultation event took place at the Floral Pavilion on 8th June.
The event was well represented by all stakeholders and the event was well received. The
attached report is the feedback from the event.

2.0 Recommendations:
Wirral Children’s Trust Board notes the report.

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Head of Service

Contact:
Phone: 666 4329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72

DRAFT
ROOTS AND WINGS – CHILD AND FAMILY POVERTY
FEEDBACK FROM CONSULTATION EVENT – FLORAL PAVILION – 8th JUNE 2011
1.

Introduction
A consultation event was held on the 8th June to explore with practitioners and providers to
explore what more we can do in Wirral to tackle child and family poverty. The event
incorporated three workshop sessions on the following:
§
§
§

Raising Family Income
Improving Life Chances and Supporting Family Life
Transforming Neighbourhoods and People’s Lives

Analysis of the feedback has resulted in the identification of a number of cross-cutting
issues for consideration by the Working Group in developing recommendations for Wirral’s
local strategy. These are outlined in section 2 below along with some of the ideas raised
by participants at the event as to how we might address these issues in partnership.
Sections 3, 4 and 5 of this report summarise some of the more specific issues discussed in
relation to the workshop themes.
2.

Cross-Cutting Issues
A number of issues were raised across all three sessions of the Consultation Event as they
are interwoven within any discussion of child poverty. These have, therefore, been
addressed as Cross-Cutting issues in this section.

2.1

Raising Awareness
What’s the issue?
There was recognition from participants that we need to challenge and change culture
associated with child poverty. This reinforces comments made by the Working Group
about the use of positive language and approaches to engage organisations and local
people with the agenda.
What should / could we do?
•
•

2.2

Promote the ‘Roots and Wings’ approach through further consultation activities and as
the umbrella for key projects and programmes.
Ensure all partners and local organisations are given the opportunity to engage with
and sign up to a clear vision for the local strategy.

Better Co-ordination and Signposting
What’s the issue?
It is clear from the feedback from participants that there is strong evidence of partnership
working, with examples including co-located area teams. There was also a clear
recognition that we can make improvements; referrals between agencies can be limited, for
example, because of a lack of understanding about organisational remits and networks
between agencies existing informally.

Page 1 of 5

Page 73

DRAFT
There was a recognition that staff from some agencies did not always know what services
were being provided by other agencies. In addition, it was generally accepted that
knowledge of existing services among members of the public could be improved.
What should / could we do?
•

•
2.3

Improve referral pathways and signposting for families and individuals, which take into
account actual and potential needs linked to issues of poverty – ideas included a
directory for use by services, maintaining a central ‘library’ of services and their
providers in Wirral, vulnerable children and families having a single lead professional,
area teams making links with other services, for example, housing.
Ensure children and family outcomes built on co-ordinated support are central to local
commissioning strategies and partner plans.

Data Sharing
What’s the issue?
A specific example of partnership working which participants raised was the possibility of
greater use of shared data in the future. In particular, the identification of service take-up
and the resulting possibility of some families not accessing services were raised.
Confidentiality and data protection were highlighted as barriers to greater sharing of data.
What should / could we do?
•
•

2.4

Strengthened partnership working should lead to higher levels of data and knowledge
sharing.
Develop protocols to enable improved data sharing between agencies. This could
include use of shared technology.

Outreach and Advice
What’s the issue?
There was an appreciation of the availability of advice available from third sector providers
and community facilities, such as the Citizens Advice Bureau and the Laurie’s. In addition,
there was recognition of the role played by GPs’ surgeries, One Stop Shops and Children’s
Centres in the provision of advice to families.
What should / could we do?
•
•
•

2.5

Investigate the expansion of information made available to mums, especially first-time
mums and young mums, at the time of the birth of their child.
Aim to provide information in more flexible and accessible formats, for example,
websites, leaflets and opening hours at information centres.
Create an information sharing coordinator for locality-based teams.

Early Intervention
What’s the issue?
There is an increasing recognition of the benefits of early intervention programmes, the
intention of which is to support a focus on preventative services in the early years and up
through the age range. A particularly important issue is the identification of families who fail
to access existing services. The national focus has been set by the development of the

Page 2 of 5

Page 74

DRAFT
Early Intervention Grant, a specific funding stream, which will run from 2011 until 2015. The
intention is to enable local authorities and their partners to pool funding in order to target
disadvantage and achieve better results. A process for the allocation of Early Intervention
Grant has been developed in Wirral.
What should / could we do?
•
•
•
2.6

Continue to ensure that the Early Intervention Grant is targeted effectively by reviewing
the framework used during the recent commissioning process.
Review the evidence from the 26 Local Authorities named as an Early Intervention
Place.
Look at guided pathways for the most vulnerable children / families.

Resources
What’s the issue?
There was recognition that the national economic climate presents challenges to service
providers in both the third sector and public sector. The necessity to use resources more
effectively was highlighted. There was a particular acknowledgment that small community
groups can often have a big impact in a locality albeit on a limited budget. There was some
acceptance that, in the past, evaluation of the outcomes of intervention programmes has
not always been strong and, as a result, all programmes are not effectively evaluated.
What should / could we do?
•
•
•
•

2.7

Promote longer-term funding of projects, particularly by commissioning services over a
longer timeframe. This will enable service providers to plan over a greater timescale.
Investigate the possibility of developing more shared services and pooled budgets
between partners.
Place a greater emphasis on enabling community groups to retain funding.
Ensure that appropriate monitoring and evaluation of intervention programmes is in
place to measure outcomes.

Raising Aspirations
What’s the issue?
There was a wide recognition of the importance of raising aspirations both of young people
themselves as well as the aspirations of parents for their children. Specific target groups
included NEETs (young people Not in Education, Employment or Training), young parents
and families of “third generation” unemployed. Embedding motivation from an early age in
a child’s life was identified as a particularly important issue.
What should / could we do?
•
•

3.

“Work with the next generation to raise their aspirations for their children”.
Encourage the use of mentors and peer-support, particularly in more deprived
communities.

Raising Family Income
What are the issues?

Page 3 of 5

Page 75

DRAFT
3.1

Barriers to employment and training including:
• Education and training – Some young people do not have the relevant basic skills for
work including numeracy and literacy skills.
• Availability of opportunities for adult learning.
• The prevalence of third-generation unemployment and the consequential cycle of
worklessness.
• The need for affordable, accessible and flexible childcare.
• Low travel horizons in deprived areas, partly exacerbated by the affordability of
transport.
• Hard-to reach-groups, including mental health issues, young offenders, people who do
not engage, homeless / rough sleepers, alcohol / drug dependency, ethnic minority
communities

3.2

Financial inclusion – issues raised included:
• The lack of basic financial skills in some families.
• The need for greater debt support, including increased access to Credit Unions
• Further awareness is required regarding benefit entitlements.
• The need to enhance the current programmes aimed at reducing fuel poverty.

3.3

Steps to reduce in-work poverty

4.

Improving Life Chances and Supporting Family Life
What are the issues?

4.1

Hard-to-reach families including:
• Non-engagement of families with existing services.
• Early identification of those families not engaged with services, including Children’s
Centres.
• Target groups including transient families.

4.2

Raising parenting skills including:
• Parental aspirations and the negative culture towards parenting in some communities.
• Although parenting and family learning programmes are available, they are not widely
accessed in all communities.
• Target groups such as young parents and grandparents.

4.3

Reducing health inequalities, including:
• Enhancing successful programmes such as the Family Nurse Partnership and the
Health Visitor programme.
• The need to examine the pathways for people with mental health issues.
• The strong links between health providers and schools in Wirral were noted.
• Further promote successful programmes to promote breastfeeding.

4.4

Improving educational attainment, including:
• Attendance at Children’s Centres is lower in more deprived areas. Therefore
consideration could be given to the provision of incentives to participate.
• Language development in the early years is crucial in ensuring that a child is “ready for
school”.
• Despite some success in reducing persistent absence, significant numbers of young
people are not fully engaging in education.
• A significant number of young people are leaving school without the basic numeracy
and literacy skills required in later life, especially to be successful in the workplace.

Page 4 of 5

Page 76

DRAFT
•
5.

Will the forthcoming Pupil Premium ensure that more resources are targeted at
deprived children in schools?

Transforming Neighbourhoods and People’s Lives
What are the issues?

5.1

Housing, including:
• Continuing to improve standards of housing in both private sector and Registered
Social Landlord stock.
• Housing Market Renewal Initiative – refurbishing properties and building sustainable
communities.
• Gaps in intelligence relating to Private Sector Housing.

5.2

Safer Communities, including:
• Anti-Social Behaviour – long term, intensive investment required.
• Young people are not engaged with services.
• Gaps in intelligence relating to domestic violence.

5.3

Community Engagement, including:
• Low community cohesion in some areas.
• Need to increase ‘ownership’ of issues by the community.
• Need to involve residents with skills / resources in more affluent parts of Wirral to
support more deprived areas.
• Change attitude of more affluent communities towards deprived areas.
• Evaluation of Youth Hubs – are Young People willing to travel further for a ‘better’
service?

Page 5 of 5

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78

Agenda Item 11
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 15th July 2011
Proposed Restructure of Children and Young People’s Department

1.0 Background
With regard to the proposed structure of the department, from 1st July we will move from
four branches to three, upon the retirement of the Head of Participation and Inclusion,
Peter Edmondson. The functions of the Participation and Inclusion branch will be shared
to the most appropriate of the remaining three branches, Children’s Social Care, Learning
and Achievement and Planning and Resources. Attached are two sheets showing the
changes, the first shows the moves of the various elements/functions of the Participation
and Inclusion Branch (the functions shown in red) and the second sheet shows the three
branch structure from 1st July 2011. With the exception of Youth, Youth Offending Service
and Anti-Social Behaviour moving to the Children’s Social Care branch, this branch
remains unchanged, with the majority of other functions transferring to the Learning and
Achievement branch and some - Transport, Admissions and Commissioning to the
Planning and Resources Branch.
The proposed restructure is still subject to formal agreement.

2.0 Recommendations:
Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Report Author:
David Armstrong
Interim Director of Children’s Services

Contact:
Phone: 666 4288
Email: davidarmstrong@wirral.gov.uk

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80

14-19 Team

SACRE

ESW

Hospital School

Prim'y Improvement

Prim'y Intervention

Apprenticeships

Connexions

LACES

Schools HR

Childen's Service HR

1

Business Partner
School's HR

Strategic Service Mgr
Children's HR

Workforce Development

PFI

Social Care Commissioning

Youth Commissioning

LAC

Residential

Fostering

Adoption

Strategic Service Mgr

Commissioning

Fleet Mgt
Pupil Transport
Adult Transport

Transport

Admissions

Performance Mgt

Information

Data Mgt

Strategic Service Mgr

Corporate HR Shared Service

LMS

Internal Finance

Curriculum Admin
PEC Business
SLAs
Secretariat
Communication
Complaints

Business Support Unit

Asset Mgt

Health & Safety

Metro Services

Facilities Mgt

Strategic Service Mgr
Finance & Facilities Mgt

Head of Planning & Resources

HR Business Partner
Children's Services

Portage Service

Behaviour

Ed Psychologists

Medical Support

Sensory Support

SEN

SESS

Strategic Service Mgr
SEN & Disability

(B-2) CYPD Dept Structural Report with No's.doc - 03/06/2011

WASP

Oaklands

Ed Quality SLA

Music Service

MEAS

Sec'y Improvement

Children Centres

Lifelong Learning

Strategic Service Mgr
Post 16 & Regen

Governor Support

Strategic Service Mgr
Secondary

Early Years Team

Strategic Service Mgr
Early Years & Primary

Head of Learning & Achievement

Director of Children's Services

Children & Young People’s Departmental Structure as at 1 Jan – 30 Jun 2011 (Moves indicated)

Page 81

Business & Policy

Quality Assurance

LSCB

Complaints

Strategic Service Mgr
Safeguarding

District D

District C

District B

District A

Strategic Service Mgr

Head of Children's Social Care

Anti-Social Beh'r

YOS

Youth Service

Strategic Service Mgr
Integrated Youth Support

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82

Oaklands

14-19 Team

Apprenticeships

Ed Quality SLA

SACRE

ESW

Hospital School

WASP

Music Service

Prim'y Improvement

Prim'y Intervention

PFI

Commissioning

Transport

Admissions

Performance Mgt

Information

Data Mgt

Strategic Service Mgr

Schools HR

Childen's Service HR

1

Business Partner
School's HR

Strategic Service Mgr
Children's HR

LAC

Residential

Fostering

Adoption

Strategic Service Mgr

Workforce Development

Corporate HR Shared Service

LMS

Internal Finance

Business Support Unit

Asset Mgt

Health & Safety

Metro Services

Facilities Mgt

Strategic Service Mgr
Finance & Facilities Mgt

Head of Planning & Resources

HR Business Partner
Children's Services

Portage Service

Behaviour

Ed Psychologists

Medical Support

Sensory Support

SEN

SESS

Strategic Service Mgr
SEN & Disability

(B-3) CYPD Dept Structural Report with No's.doc - 03/06/2011

Connexions

LACES

MEAS

Sec'y Improvement

Children Centres

Lifelong Learning

Strategic Service Mgr
Post 16 & Regen

Governor Support

Strategic Service Mgr
Secondary

Early Years Team

Strategic Service Mgr
Early Years & Primary

Head of Learning & Achievement

Director of Children's Services

Children & Young People’s Departmental Structure as at 1 July 2011 – Restructure complete

Page 83

Quality Assurance

LSCB

Complaints

Strategic Service Mgr
Safeguarding

Business & Policy

District D

District C

District B

District A

Strategic Service Mgr

Head of Children's Social Care

Anti-Social Beh'r

YOS

Youth Service

Strategic Service Mgr
Integrated Youth Support

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84

Agenda Item 12
CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD 15th JULY 2011
Wirral School HELP Survey 2011 Analysis

1.0

BACKGROUND
The Wirral Health, Education and Lifestyle Profile (HELP) Survey was developed by Wirral LA
following the Governments discontinuation of the Tellus Survey in 2010. Its purpose was to capture
data in areas that were formerly collected by Tellus regarding emotional health, well being and
participation in positive activities. The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of participation
in the survey in Wirral schools, provide a summary of the outcomes based on the former Tellus
national indicators and make some recommendations on the future of the HELP Survey.
2.0
SCHOOL PARTICIPATION
Wirral schools were invited to participate in the HELP survey during the spring term of the 2010/11
academic year. The survey was split into Primary and Secondary school versions. The primary
school version was aimed at pupils in year 6 and the secondary school version at students in years 8
and 10. Questions in both surveys were generally the same, the main differences being drugs related
questions and more detailed questions about the respondents future in the secondary school version.
A total of 1460 children across all schools responded to the survey. This compares to 3012 in the
2009/10 Tellus4 Survey. Primary school take up of the HELP survey was similar to the Tellus4 take
up: 903 compared with 1063 from Tellus4. Secondary school take up was considerably lower: 555
compared to 1949. This should be taken into account when analysing secondary survey data.
See Appendix 1 Table A for a detailed breakdown of the schools who participated in the survey
compared to Tellus4. All schools who participated in the survey will receive a copy of the Wirral
summary of responses as well as comparisons of their own schools responses.
3.0

OUTCOMES FROM THE HELP SURVEY

3.1
Former National Indicators
The Tellus Survey contributed to 5 of the former National Indicators. Using the data collected from
the HELP Survey together with the definitions of the former National Indicators that Tellus contributed
to, the outcomes of the 5 indicators have been calculated in the table below. The table also contains
comparisons with the 2009/10 Tellus4 data.
HELP Survey
2010/11

Tellus4 Wirral
2009/10

Emotional Health of Children

59.5

57.2

69

Children who have experience bullying
(lower is better)

27.9

26.8

110

Young Peoples Participation in Positive
Activities

72.9

67.3

115

Substance Misuse by Young People
(lower is better)

5.8

13.9

199

Children and young people's satisfaction
with parks and play areas

57.5

52.5

NI Num

Indicator Description

50

Direction of
Travel

Not comparable

The figure for NI 115 relating to substance misuse looks like a significant improvement on the Tellus4
outcome; however, this may not be directly comparable due to the large difference in numbers who
responded to the secondary school survey. This factor should be considered across all the indicators
but will be most pronounced for NI 115.
See Table B, Appendix 1 for comparisons with 09/10 national, statistical and geographic neighbours.
Appendix 2 contains the full reports from the primary and secondary school surveys.

Page 85

3.2

Highlights from the Survey Responses

3.2.1 Making a Positive Contribution
Local parks, playgrounds and sports club are the most common activities of young people in their free
time. Roughly 70% have not used youth centre facilities in the last 4 weeks. The most common
things that prevent young people from doing activities they would like to do include the following: cost;
activities are not available in their area, and because of not having anyone to go with. 71% of primary
school children have taken part in a group activity led by an adult outside of school lessons compared
with 57% in secondary school.
The secondary survey focused on places to go on Friday and Saturday nights. 21% said they had
been to a youth club. 60% either don’t know of or disagree that there are safe places to go on Friday
and Saturday nights. 76% don’t know or disagree that there are choices of activities available. The
cost is given as the main reason for not using public transport (other than not needing to!)
3.2.2 Enjoy and Achieve
72% of secondary school students weren’t sure or disagreed that their teachers made the lessons
interesting. 34% were not sure or didn’t know what lunch time/after school activities were available.
60% responded that other pupils disrupted lessons.
School work and exams followed by bullying are the two areas most worried about by primary school
children. For secondary this also was school work and exams followed by what to do after year 11.
Most young people walk to school although the next most common means of transport is car.
3.2.3 Staying Safe
Young people generally feel very safe/quite safe in the area they live, travelling to and from school
and using public transport. However, 10/12% feel unsafe in the area they live.
359 (42% of) children said they had been bullied at some point in primary school. Of those, 19% said
bullying took place in the last 4 weeks and 56% said a few times in the last year. 76% of all primary
children said their school deals with bullying quite well or very well.
167 (35% of) students in secondary school said they had been bullied. Of those 21% said bullying
took place in the last 4 weeks and 43% said a few times this year. 55% of all secondary students
said that their school deals with bullying quite well or very well.
3.2.4 Economic Wellbeing
52% of primary school children plan to stay on to do further education in college or sixth form with
56% saying they think they will go to university/higher education. 33% state they don’t know!
61% of students plan to do further education in college or sixth form and 55% saying they would like
to go to university. 22% state they still don’t know!
Most support when planning for the future comes from family, friends and teachers. 47% of
secondary school students said that they get no help from their Connexions advisor.
3.2.5 Being Healthy
Most young people have one or more good friends, although of all the people children feel they can
talk to when worried about something, a youth worker is not one of them.
39 primary school children eat 3-4 vegetables of their “five a day”, compared to 31% of secondary
school students. 12-14% respondents state they eat none! Most young people do something active
such as walking, running, sports etc most days each week.
93% of primary school children state they have never smoked. 5% of children state they have been
drunk at least once in the last 4 weeks. The secondary survey provided some detail on drug and
alcohol misuse which would need further analysis. Overall, 86% of students say they have never
taken drugs and 70% say they have never smoked.

Page 86

3.2.6 Overall
The survey concluded by asking what the top three areas young people in Wirral feel would make
their life better. These are as follows:
Primary Schools:
1. More places to spend time with friends
2. More interesting school lessons
3. More organised activities to do
Secondary schools:
1. More interesting school lessons
2. More places to spend time with friends
3. More help to plan for my future

4.0
CONCLUSION
The HELP Survey has provided a considerable amount of data for analysis over and above the
calculated indicators and summary provided in this report. To get the best out of this data, responses
would need to be analysed further by personnel involved in the strategic areas.
The relatively small numbers who completed the survey in secondary schools makes it difficult to
analyse and provide a true reflection of Wirral as a whole. A more robust data set would require
active promotion of the survey with schools to improve participation.
The questions in the HELP survey are based on the original Tellus questionnaire; the quality and
value of the survey would be enhanced by customising the questions to make them more appropriate
to Wirral requirements.

5.0
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Children’s Trust Board Note the report:

Report Author:
Simon Douglas
Information Section
7 July 2011

Contact:
Phone: 666 4535
Email: simondouglas@wirral.gov.uk

Page 87

Appendix 1 – Outcomes from Wirral HELP Survey 2010/11
Table A, HELP Survey Participation 2010/2011 (AY)
School Type

Total Number
of Schools

Number of
Schools
represented in
the Survey

Number of
Schools
Actively
Participated

Primary/Junior

85

37

24

Secondary

22

16

5

Special

13

4

2

Totals

120

57

31

Total number of
responses to
the HELP
Survey
903
(year 6)
515
(years 8 & 10)
42
(40 secondary
age)
1460

Comparison
with the
Tellus4
Survey
1063
1949
0

3012

Notes
The “Number of Schools Represented in the Survey” column includes responses from pupils in schools that
may not have actively taken part in the survey.
The “Number of Schools Actively Participated” column include schools where 10 or more pupils responded.
Table B, HELP Survey Outcomes 2010/2011 (AY) with comparisons withTellus4 results from 2009/2010.
Tellus4
National
2009/10

Tellus4 Stat &
Geo
Neighbours
2009/10

57.2

56.0

58.5

27.9

26.8

28.8

29.6

Young Peoples
Participation in
Positive Activities

72.9

67.3

65.8

64.2

115

Substance Misuse
by Young People
(lower is better)

5.8

13.9

9.8

11.6

199

Children and young
people's
satisfaction with
parks and play
areas

57.5

52.5

54.1

52.1

HELP Survey
Outcomes
2010/11

Tellus4
Wirral
2009/10

Emotional Health of
Children

59.5

69

Children who have
experience bullying
(lower is better)

110

Former
NI
Num

Indicator
Description

50

Direction
of Travel

Not
comparable

Notes
Direction of Travel is based on PIMS year on year comparisons.
When interpreting the data, two points should be noted which will have affected the outcomes:
! 1552 more children completed the survey Tellus4 survey when compared to the HELP Survey
! 1394 of the 1552 children were from secondary schools
In particular, former NI 115 cannot be directly compared to previous year’s data due to specific drugs related
questions asked in the secondary version of the survey. The large differences in numbers completing the
survey may have caused the figures to become skewed.

Page 88

Appendix 2 – HELP Survey Reports

Page 89

HELP Survey Primary

1. Are you:

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Male

46.8%

414

Female

53.2%

470

answered question

884

skipped question

21

2. Which school do you attend?

School Name

Barnston
Primary

Please select from the drop-down list

0.0% (0)

Bedford

Bidston

Bidston

Drive

Avenue

Village

Primary

Primary

CE

0.1% (1)

0.0% (0)

5.1%
(46)

Black
Horse
Hill
Juniors

5.6%
(51)

3. Where are you completing this survey?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

In school

99.0%

886

At home

0.7%

6

In a youth club

0.2%

2

Other

0.1%

1

answered question

895

skipped question

10

Page 90
1 of 21

4. How old are you?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

9

2.5%

22

10

42.3%

378

11

55.2%

493

answered question

893

skipped question

12

Response

Response

Percent

Count

5. Which month is your birthday?

January

9.3%

83

February

6.9%

62

March

9.1%

81

April

8.5%

76

May

7.8%

70

June

8.6%

77

July

10.3%

92

August

8.2%

73

September

8.4%

75

October

8.1%

72

November

8.1%

72

December

6.8%

61

answered question

894

skipped question

11

Page 91
2 of 21

6. Which one of these best describes you?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

White - British

89.2%

796

White - Irish

1.5%

13

White - Traveller of Irish heritage

0.1%

1

White - Romany or Gypsy

0.3%

3

White - any other white background

1.2%

11

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean

0.3%

3

Mixed - White and Black African

0.4%

4

Mixed - White and Asian

0.6%

5

0.8%

7

Asian or Asian British - Indian

0.2%

2

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani

0.1%

1

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi

1.1%

10

0.7%

6

Black or Black British - Caribbean

0.1%

1

Black or Black British - African

0.0%

0

0.2%

2

Chinese

0.3%

3

Any other ethnic background

0.4%

4

Don't know / Prefer not to say

2.2%

20

answered question

892

skipped question

13

Mixed - any other mixed race
background

Asian or Asian British - any other
Asian background

Black or Black British - any other
Black background

Page 92
3 of 21

7. Children and young people are different in lots of ways. You can be different in the things you like to do,
the food you can eat, and the things you find easy or hard. Some children and young people find it more
difficult than others to carry out everyday things. This could be physical things like moving about, seeing
and hearing, or things that affect your communication and understanding. This is often called ‘Disability’.
Do you get extra help at school from a person like a Teaching Assistant? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE
FOR YOU

Yes, I often get extra help with

Response

Response

Percent

Count

34.2%

298

4.8%

42

5.1%

44

6.7%

58

2.8%

24

No, I do not get any extra help

51.0%

444

Don’t know / Don’t want to say

11.7%

102

answered question

871

skipped question

34

Response

Response

Percent

Count

school work and learning
Yes, I often get extra help with
getting about
Yes, I often get extra help with
talking and listening
Yes, I often get extra help to stay
calm
Yes, I often get extra help with
taking my medicine

8. Do you have a disability?

Yes

5.9%

52

No

87.4%

767

Don’t know

6.7%

59

answered question

878

skipped question

27

Page 93
4 of 21

9. Do you have free school meals? That is a meal provided by your school for free (you and your family do
not have to pay for it).

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

27.2%

240

No

69.1%

610

Don’t know

3.7%

33

answered question

883

skipped question

22

10. What is your postcode? PLEASE WRITE IN THE BOX BELOW When you tell us what you think of your
local area we can tell what area you are talking about because you have given us your postcode. We still do
NOT KNOW your name or who you are.

Response
Count
814
answered question

814

skipped question

91

Response

Response

Percent

Count

11. What do you think of the parks and play areas in your area?

Very good

23.0%

201

Fairly good

47.3%

413

Neither good nor poor

14.0%

122

Fairly poor

6.8%

59

Very poor

4.8%

42

Don’t know

4.1%

36

answered question

873

skipped question

32

Page 94
5 of 21

12. How safe do you feel… PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

In the area where you live?

Going to and from school?

In school?

Very safe

Quite safe

46.5%

39.9%

(409)

(351)

52.5%

38.5%

(445)

(326)

82.0%

13.0%

(704)

(112)

A bit

Very

Don't

Response

unsafe

unsafe

know

Count

10.9% (96)

1.7% (15)

0.9% (8)

879

7.4% (63)

0.8% (7)

0.7% (6)

847

3.6% (31)

0.9% (8)

0.5% (4)

859

answered question

884

skipped question

21

Response

Response

Percent

Count

13. Do you use local public transport (such as buses and trains)?

Yes

9.1%

79

Sometimes

49.1%

428

No (go to question 15)

41.8%

364

answered question

871

skipped question

34

14. How safe do you feel when you travel on local public transport (such as buses and trains)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Very safe

17.7%

116

Quite safe

54.0%

355

A bit unsafe

20.7%

136

Very unsafe

2.4%

16

Don’t know

5.2%

34

answered question

657

skipped question

248

Page 95
6 of 21

15. Why don’t you use public transport? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

I don’t need to

83.6%

498

There isn’t any where I live

2.7%

16

It costs too much

10.9%

65

I don’t feel safe

9.6%

57

It isn’t easy

3.5%

21

My parents/carers don’t want me to

11.6%

69

answered question

596

skipped question

309

16. How much have your ideas about your school been listened to when you have given them to your school
council or in other ways?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A lot

20.9%

184

A little

30.3%

267

Not very much

15.0%

132

Not at all

7.6%

67

Don’t know

7.7%

68

I haven’t given my ideas

18.5%

163

answered question

881

skipped question

24

Page 96
7 of 21

17. In the last 4 weeks, have you taken part in any group activity led by an adult outside school lessons (such
as sports, arts, or a youth group)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

71.1%

605

No

24.6%

209

Don't Know

4.3%

37

answered question

851

skipped question

54

Page 97
8 of 21

18. Which of these have you been to in your free time in the last 4 weeks? (Please do not count things which
were part of school lessons.) PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

Local park or playground

Response

Yes

No

69.9% (578)

30.1% (249)

827

58.7% (484)

41.3% (340)

824

31.0% (248)

69.0% (552)

800

20.4% (160)

79.6% (625)

785

13.0% (101)

87.0% (678)

779

38.3% (310)

61.7% (499)

809

21.4% (167)

78.6% (613)

780

21.9% (169)

78.1% (604)

773

58.0% (454)

42.0% (329)

783

Count

Sports club or class (not in school
lessons and only count where
you've done sport and not just
watched it)
A youth centre or club to take part
in organised activities (including
Brownies, Guides or Scouts)
A youth centre or club with few or
no organised activities
Religious, faith or community group
(not including services)
Art, craft, dance, drama,
film/video-making group (not in
school lessons)
Music group or lesson (not in school
lessons)
Given your time to help a charity, a
local voluntary group or done some
organised volunteering
Something else

Page 98
9 of 21

answered question

875

skipped question

30

19. What sort of things stop you from doing any activities you would like to do? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE
TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Nothing stops me

52.8%

457

Not available in my area

14.0%

121

Not available when I want to do it

12.7%

110

Costs too much

17.4%

151

I can't get there

8.7%

75

I have no-one to go with

9.9%

86

I don't have the time

12.0%

104

My parents/carers worry about me

6.7%

58

6.5%

56

16.5%

143

answered question

866

skipped question

39

I don't know how to find out what's
on offer
Something else

Page 99
10 of 21

20. Which of these things do you often worry about? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU. You can
tick as many as you want. Remember, your answers to this survey are private. We don’t know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Being bullied

30.1%

261

School work and exams

46.8%

406

Being healthy

21.0%

182

Money

18.7%

162

Friendships

32.0%

278

My parents or family

30.6%

266

Being a victim of crime

13.2%

115

The way I look

26.0%

226

Something else

14.7%

128

Don’t know

5.3%

46

Nothing worries me

19.8%

172

answered question

868

skipped question

37

Page 100
11 of 21

21. Please read each sentence below and tick the box next to it to show if it is true for you or not true for
you. Where we mention your parent/carer, we mean either your parents or the person/people, such as step
parents, carers or grandparents who you live with and who look after you most of the time. PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

True

I feel happy about life at the
moment
I have one or more good friends
When I’m worried about something I
can talk to my parent/carer
When I’m worried about something I
can talk to my friends

Neither true
nor not true

Not true

Don’t know

Response
Count

75.6% (658)

13.7% (119)

7.0% (61)

3.7% (32)

870

93.0% (800)

2.9% (25)

2.9% (25)

1.2% (10)

860

77.3% (657)

13.2% (112)

5.8% (49)

3.8% (32)

850

70.0% (595)

14.6% (124)

11.8% (100)

3.6% (31)

850

48.2% (405)

17.7% (149)

26.2% (220)

7.9% (66)

840

15.7% (130)

13.4% (111)

54.3% (450)

16.5% (137)

828

When I’m worried about something I
can talk to an adult who isn’t my
parent/carer
When I'm worried about something I
can talk to a Youth Worker

answered question

875

skipped question

30

22. How do you get to and from school on most days? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Walk

69.0%

600

By bike

18.0%

157

On the school bus

0.7%

6

By public transport (bus, train)

1.6%

14

By car

45.7%

398

Other

2.8%

24

answered question

870

skipped question

35

Page 101
12 of 21

23. How much do you agree with these things about your school? PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

My school is giving me useful skills
and knowledge

Response

Agree

Not sure

Disagree

89.5% (770)

8.3% (71)

2.2% (19)

860

69.5% (596)

21.3% (183)

9.2% (79)

858

72.1% (617)

19.6% (168)

8.3% (71)

856

82.2% (703)

13.9% (119)

3.9% (33)

855

46.5% (395)

33.8% (287)

19.8% (168)

850

79.2% (674)

15.4% (131)

5.4% (46)

851

65.9% (559)

24.4% (207)

9.7% (82)

848

64.3% (534)

25.4% (211)

10.2% (85)

830

answered question

865

skipped question

40

Count

My school has lots of activities
(like sport and drama) to take part
in at lunchtime or after school
Most of my teachers make my
lessons fun and interesting
Most of my teachers tell me how I
am doing with my work
Other pupils often disrupt my
lessons
I get enough help at school with
learning
We have enough chances to learn
somewhere that is not in a
classroom (this can include learning
outside, going on visits)
I get enough help with making
choices and decisions

Page 102
13 of 21

24. We’d like to ask you about bullying. Bullying can mean lots of different things to different people.
Bullying is when people hurt or pick on you on purpose, for example by teasing you, hitting or kicking you
or saying that they will do this. It can involve people taking or breaking your things, making you do
something you don’t want to do, leaving you out or spreading hurtful and untrue rumours. Bullying can be
face to face, by mobile phone or on the internet. Have you ever been bullied at school? Remember, your
answers to this survey are private. We don’t know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 25)

42.1%

359

No (go to question 27)

57.9%

494

answered question

853

skipped question

52

Response

Response

Percent

Count

25. How recently have you been bullied at school?

In the last year

22.1%

85

In the last six months

13.8%

53

In the last four weeks

19.3%

74

44.8%

172

answered question

384

skipped question

521

I was bullied more than 1 year
ago

Page 103
14 of 21

26. How often has someone done something to bully you at school? This could be by the same person each
time, or different people.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A few times this year

56.1%

192

Every month

4.7%

16

Every week

7.6%

26

Most days

25.7%

88

Every day

5.8%

20

answered question

342

skipped question

563

27. Have you ever been bullied when you are not in school (including on your journey to school)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 28)

27.0%

227

No (go to question 30)

73.0%

615

answered question

842

skipped question

63

28. How recently have you been bullied when you are not in school (including on your journey to school)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

In the last year

26.0%

74

In the last six months

17.9%

51

In the last four weeks

20.7%

59

35.4%

101

answered question

285

skipped question

620

I was bullied more than 1 year
ago

Page 104
15 of 21

29. How often has someone done something to bully you when you are not in school? This could be by the
same person each time, or different people.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A few times this year

63.0%

165

Every month

7.6%

20

Every week

4.2%

11

Most days

20.2%

53

Every day

5.0%

13

answered question

262

skipped question

643

30. How well does your school deal with bullying? Remember, your answers to this survey are private. We
don't know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Very well

45.9%

395

Quite well

30.4%

262

Not very well

9.5%

82

Badly

4.3%

37

4.3%

37

5.6%

48

answered question

861

skipped question

44

Bullying is not a problem in my
school
Don't know

Page 105
16 of 21

31. What do you think you will do when you finish Year 11?

Do some more studying at

Response

Response

Percent

Count

52.2%

447

Be an Apprentice

2.7%

23

Get a job with training

17.1%

146

Don't know yet

28.0%

240

answered question

856

skipped question

49

Response

Response

Percent

Count

college or sixth form

32. Do you think that you will go to university / higher education in the future?

Yes

56.2%

478

No

10.5%

89

Don’t know

33.3%

283

answered question

850

skipped question

55

Page 106
17 of 21

33. How much help have you had to plan what to do when you are older from any of the people below?
PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE Help from:

Your family

Your friends

Your teachers

A Connexions Personal Adviser

Teachers at secondary schools or
colleges

A lot

A little

60.5%

26.3%

(517)

(225)

26.5%

Not very
much

None

6.0% (51)

4.9% (42)

36.1%

13.8%

20.6%

(223)

(304)

(116)

(173)

35.7%

31.4%

14.5%

14.6%

(299)

(263)

(121)

(122)

6.0% (49)

8.1% (66)

5.0% (41)

10.0% (81)

11.9% (96)

7.2% (58)

Don't

Response

know

Count

2.2% (19)

854

3.0% (25)

841

3.8% (32)

837

50.3%

30.5%

(409)

(248)

46.7%

24.3%

(377)

(196)

813

808

answered question

858

skipped question

47

34. How many of the ‘five a day’ fruit and vegetables did you eat yesterday? One of your ‘five a day’ is a
handful of vegetables, a piece of fruit or a cup of fruit juice.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

None

4.2%

35

1-2

25.2%

211

3-4

38.6%

323

5 or more

23.3%

195

Don’t know

8.7%

73

answered question

837

skipped question

68

Page 107
18 of 21

35. Thinking back to last week, how often did you do something active? Please include things like walking to
school, running around, riding a bike, playing sports, skateboarding, dancing and swimming. PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

I did something active before
school
I did something active during
lesson time (including PE lessons)
I did something active during
lunchtime/breaktimes
I did something active after school

Response

Every day

Most days

Some days

Never

26.8% (210)

18.7% (147)

28.8% (226)

25.7% (202)

785

19.0% (153)

30.4% (245)

45.8% (369)

4.8% (39)

806

60.9% (481)

23.7% (187)

10.5% (83)

4.9% (39)

790

39.3% (321)

30.9% (252)

24.0% (196)

5.8% (47)

816

Count

answered question

832

skipped question

73

Response

Response

Percent

Count

36. Did you take part in any organised sport or keep fit activities last weekend?

Yes

55.1%

456

No

44.9%

371

answered question

827

skipped question

78

37. The next questions are about whether you have ever drunk alcohol or smoked cigarettes. Please be as
honest as you can. Have you ever had an alcoholic drink - a whole drink, not just a sip?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 38)

17.4%

144

No (go to question 39)

73.1%

606

9.5%

79

answered question

829

skipped question

76

I don't want to say (go to question
39)

Page 108
19 of 21

38. In the last four weeks, how many times have you been drunk?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

None

46.5%

206

Once

5.0%

22

Twice

0.9%

4

Three or more times

2.0%

9

Don't want to say

2.3%

10

Don't know / Can't remember

3.2%

14

I have never been drunk

40.2%

178

answered question

443

skipped question

462

39. Read the sentences below carefully and tick the box next to the one that best describes you:

I have never smoked
I have only ever tried smoking
once
I used to smoke sometimes but I
never smoke a cigarette now

Response

Response

Percent

Count

93.3%

771

2.3%

19

0.7%

6

0.2%

2

0.1%

1

0.5%

4

2.8%

23

answered question

826

skipped question

79

I sometimes smoke cigarettes now
but I don't smoke as many as one
a week
I usually smoke between one and
six cigarettes a week
I usually smoke more than six
cigarettes a week
I don’t want to say

Page 109
20 of 21

40. You have told us lots of things about your life. If there are three things that would make your life better,
what would they be? PLEASE TICK UP TO THREE BOXES ONLY

Response

Response

Percent

Count

More help to do better at school

21.9%

183

More interesting school lessons

35.0%

292

Less bullying

21.9%

183

29.9%

250

47.8%

399

11.4%

95

11.7%

98

More advice about being healthy

11.1%

93

More help to plan for my future

25.9%

216

9.1%

76

Someone I can always talk to

13.7%

114

None of these

5.1%

43

Something else

9.0%

75

Don’t know

6.9%

58

answered question

835

skipped question

70

More organised activities and things
to do
More places where I can go to
spend time with my friends
More chance to have a say in how
things are run at school or in the
local area
More ways I can volunteer or help
people

More help to feel safer at school
and in the local area

Page 110
21 of 21

HELP Survey Secondary

1. Are you:

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Male

69.5%

379

Female

30.5%

166

answered question

545

skipped question

10

2. Which school do you attend?

School Name

Please select from the drop-down
list

Bebington

Birkenhead

High

High

Sports

School

College

Academy

0.2% (1)

0.0% (0)

Birkenhead

Calday

Clare

Sixth Form

Grange

Mount

College

Grammar

School

0.0% (0)

0.0% (0)

0.0% (0)

Foxfield
School

0.2% (1)

3. Where are you completing this survey?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

In school

96.2%

529

At home

2.2%

12

In a youth club

0.9%

5

Other

0.7%

4

answered question

550

skipped question

5

Page 111
1 of 26

4. How old are you?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

12

17.2%

95

13

27.0%

149

14

27.0%

149

15

27.0%

149

16

1.6%

9

answered question

551

skipped question

4

Response

Response

Percent

Count

5. Which month is your birthday?

January

8.4%

46

February

7.5%

41

March

8.0%

44

April

6.5%

36

May

8.9%

49

June

7.8%

43

July

10.5%

58

August

10.4%

57

September

8.4%

46

October

9.6%

53

November

7.8%

43

December

6.2%

34

answered question

550

skipped question

5

Page 112
2 of 26

6. Which one of these best describes you?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

White - British

88.2%

487

White - Irish

0.9%

5

White - Traveller of Irish heritage

0.4%

2

White - Romany or Gypsy

0.5%

3

White - any other white background

0.5%

3

Mixed - White and Black Caribbean

0.7%

4

Mixed - White and Black African

0.7%

4

Mixed - White and Asian

0.0%

0

0.5%

3

Asian or Asian British - Indian

0.2%

1

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani

1.1%

6

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi

1.6%

9

0.4%

2

Black or Black British - Caribbean

0.2%

1

Black or Black British - African

0.7%

4

0.0%

0

Chinese

0.7%

4

Any other ethnic background

1.3%

7

Don't know / Prefer not to say

1.3%

7

answered question

552

skipped question

3

Mixed - any other mixed race
background

Asian or Asian British - any other
Asian background

Black or Black British - any other
Black background

Page 113
3 of 26

7. Children and young people are different in lots of ways. You can be different in the things you like to do,
the food you can eat, and the things you find easy or hard. Some children and young people find it more
difficult than others to carry out everyday things. This could be physical things like moving about, seeing
and hearing, or things that affect your communication and understanding. This is often called ‘Disability’.
Do you get extra help at school from a person like a Teaching Assistant? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE
FOR YOU

Yes, I often get extra help with

Response

Response

Percent

Count

13.2%

70

2.6%

14

4.3%

23

6.0%

32

2.1%

11

No, I do not get any extra help

71.6%

381

Don’t know / Don’t want to say

12.8%

68

answered question

532

skipped question

23

Response

Response

Percent

Count

school work and learning
Yes, I often get extra help with
getting about
Yes, I often get extra help with
talking and listening
Yes, I often get extra help to stay
calm
Yes, I often get extra help with
taking my medicine

8. Do you have a disability?

Yes

7.7%

42

No

85.1%

461

Don’t know

7.2%

39

answered question

542

skipped question

13

Page 114
4 of 26

9. Do you have free school meals? That is a meal provided by your school for free (you and your family do
not have to pay for it).

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

20.4%

112

No

75.5%

415

Don’t know

4.2%

23

answered question

550

skipped question

5

10. What is your postcode? PLEASE WRITE IN THE BOX BELOW When you tell us what you think of your
local area we can tell what area you are talking about because you have given us your postcode. We still do
NOT KNOW your name or who you are.

Response
Count
479
answered question

479

skipped question

76

Response

Response

Percent

Count

11. What do you think of the parks and play areas in your area?

Very good

7.9%

42

Fairly good

28.7%

152

Neither good nor poor

20.8%

110

Fairly poor

15.8%

84

Very poor

19.4%

103

Don’t know

7.4%

39

answered question

530

skipped question

25

Page 115
5 of 26

12. How safe do you feel… PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

In the area where you live?

Going to and from school?

In school?

Very safe

Quite safe

34.7%

47.9%

(184)

(254)

45.3%

44.9%

(235)

(233)

54.2%

36.6%

(280)

(189)

A bit

Very

Don't

Response

unsafe

unsafe

know

Count

12.1% (64)

4.3% (23)

0.9% (5)

530

6.6% (34)

2.1% (11)

1.2% (6)

519

3.7% (19)

4.1% (21)

1.5% (8)

517

answered question

532

skipped question

23

Response

Response

Percent

Count

13. Do you use local public transport (such as buses and trains)?

Yes

39.4%

211

Sometimes

33.8%

181

No (go to question 15)

26.7%

143

answered question

535

skipped question

20

Page 116
6 of 26

14. How safe do you feel when you travel on local public transport (such as buses, trains, trams,
underground)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Very safe

20.8%

89

Quite safe

54.2%

232

A bit unsafe

18.2%

78

Very unsafe

2.8%

12

Don’t know

4.0%

17

answered question

428

skipped question

127

15. Why don’t you use public transport? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

I don’t need to

77.0%

197

There isn’t any where I live

2.7%

7

It costs too much

18.0%

46

I don’t feel safe

10.2%

26

It isn’t easy

5.1%

13

My parents/carers don’t want me to

10.2%

26

2.3%

6

5.5%

14

answered question

256

skipped question

299

There is no public transport to my
school/college available
There is no public transport to the
places I want to go

Page 117
7 of 26

16. Have you been asked to give your ideas about things that are important to you in the last year in any of
these ways? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU

By telephone, text or online

Response

Response

Percent

Count

9.6%

50

29.2%

152

15.9%

83

4.8%

25

4.6%

24

Something else

6.0%

31

Don’t know

20.0%

104

None of these

15.0%

78

I haven’t given my ideas

32.2%

168

answered question

521

skipped question

34

Filled in a questionnaire (not
including this one)
Given your ideas to a school
council
Given your ideas to a youth council
or youth parliament
Been to a meeting outside school
about making things better in your
local area

Page 118
8 of 26

17. How much have your ideas about your school been listened to when you have given them to your school
council or in other ways?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A lot

5.6%

30

A little

15.3%

82

Not very much

20.1%

108

Not at all

18.1%

97

Don’t know

14.7%

79

I haven’t given my ideas

26.1%

140

answered question

536

skipped question

19

18. In the last 4 weeks, have you taken part in any group activity led by an adult outside school lessons (such
as sports, arts, or a youth group)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

57.4%

299

No

37.4%

195

Don't Know

5.2%

27

answered question

521

skipped question

34

Page 119
9 of 26

19. Which of these have you been to in your free time in the last 4 weeks? (Please do not count things which
were part of school lessons.) PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

Local park or playground

Response

Yes

No

60.1% (282)

39.9% (187)

469

50.1% (237)

49.9% (236)

473

28.8% (126)

71.2% (312)

438

14.7% (62)

85.3% (361)

423

9.0% (38)

91.0% (382)

420

18.7% (81)

81.3% (353)

434

13.6% (58)

86.4% (370)

428

15.7% (67)

84.3% (359)

426

52.3% (235)

47.7% (214)

449

Count

Sports club or class (not in school
lessons and only count where
you've done sport and not just
watched it)
A youth centre or club to take part
in organised activities
A youth centre or club with few or
no organised activities
Religious, faith or community group
(not including services)
Art, craft, dance, drama,
film/video-making group (not in
school lessons)
Music group or lesson (not in school
lessons)
Given your time to help a charity, a
local voluntary group or done some
organised volunteering
Something else

Page 120
10 of 26

answered question

522

skipped question

33

20. What sort of things stop you from doing any activities you would like to do? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE
TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Nothing stops me

48.9%

253

Not available in my area

20.9%

108

Not available when I want to do it

10.1%

52

Costs too much

15.3%

79

I can't get there

10.8%

56

I have no-one to go with

18.8%

97

I don't have the time

14.5%

75

My parents/carers worry about me

7.5%

39

10.3%

53

12.6%

65

answered question

517

skipped question

38

I don't know how to find out what's
on offer
Something else

21. Do you go out on a Friday or Saturday night to take part in any activities such as sports, arts, media or
go to a youth centre or club?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

21.0%

110

Sometimes

25.1%

132

No

50.9%

267

Don't know

3.0%

16

answered question

525

skipped question

30

Page 121
11 of 26

22. What do you think about the things to do and places to go on Friday and Saturday nights? PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

Response

Agree

Don't know

Disagree

39.5% (202)

39.5% (202)

21.1% (108)

512

24.2% (121)

43.3% (216)

32.5% (162)

499

25.2% (127)

38.0% (191)

36.8% (185)

503

answered question

516

skipped question

39

Count

There are safe places where I can
go out to do activities on Friday
and Saturday nights
There is a good choice of activities
I can go out and do on Friday and
Saturday nights
There are enough activities for me
to go out and do on Friday and
Saturday nights

Page 122
12 of 26

23. Which of these things do you often worry about? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU. You can
tick as many as you want. Remember, your answers to this survey are private. We don’t know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Being bullied

19.6%

101

School work and exams

58.1%

299

Relationships/girlfriends/boyfriends

27.8%

143

Sex

15.7%

81

Being healthy

30.5%

157

Money

33.6%

173

Friendships

25.6%

132

What to do after Year 11

44.7%

230

My parents or family

27.2%

140

Being a victim of crime

11.5%

59

The way I look

29.7%

153

Something else

9.5%

49

Don’t know

6.8%

35

Nothing worries me

17.5%

90

answered question

515

skipped question

40

Page 123
13 of 26

24. Please read each sentence below and tick the box next to it to show if it is true for you or not true for
you. Where we mention your parent/carer, we mean either your parents or the person/people, such as step
parents, carers or grandparents who you live with and who look after you most of the time. PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

Neither true

True

I feel happy about life at the
moment
I have one or more good friends
When I’m worried about something I
can talk to my parent/carer
When I’m worried about something I
can talk to my friends

nor not true

Not true

Don’t know

Response
Count

62.7% (323)

23.7% (122)

8.3% (43)

5.2% (27)

515

89.5% (458)

4.3% (22)

4.1% (21)

2.1% (11)

512

59.8% (302)

17.0% (86)

16.0% (81)

7.1% (36)

505

60.9% (309)

20.3% (103)

12.8% (65)

5.9% (30)

507

36.5% (186)

21.4% (109)

31.6% (161)

10.4% (53)

509

14.8% (74)

14.6% (73)

52.8% (264)

17.8% (89)

500

When I’m worried about something I
can talk to an adult who isn’t my
parent/carer
When I'm worried about something I
can talk to a Youth Worker

answered question

517

skipped question

38

25. How do you get to and from school on most days? PLEASE TICK ALL THAT ARE TRUE FOR YOU

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Walk

51.1%

249

By bike

10.7%

52

On the school bus

21.8%

106

By public transport (bus, train)

16.2%

79

By car

36.3%

177

Other

4.9%

24

answered question

487

skipped question

68

Page 124
14 of 26

26. How much do you agree with these things about your school? PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

My school is giving me useful skills
and knowledge

Response

Agree

Not sure

Disagree

74.1% (354)

16.7% (80)

9.2% (44)

478

65.8% (314)

22.0% (105)

12.2% (58)

477

27.8% (132)

33.7% (160)

38.5% (183)

475

57.6% (274)

25.8% (123)

16.6% (79)

476

59.9% (285)

23.9% (114)

16.2% (77)

476

54.9% (259)

28.6% (135)

16.5% (78)

472

36.8% (173)

26.4% (124)

36.8% (173)

470

45.6% (214)

33.9% (159)

20.5% (96)

469

answered question

484

skipped question

71

Count

My school has lots of activities
(like sport and drama) to take part
in at lunchtime or after school
Most of my teachers make my
lessons fun and interesting
Most of my teachers tell me how I
am doing with my work
Other pupils often disrupt my
lessons
I get enough help at school with
learning
We have enough chances to learn
somewhere that is not in a
classroom (this can include learning
outside, going on visits)
I get enough help with making
choices and decisions

Page 125
15 of 26

27. We’d like to ask you about bullying. Bullying can mean lots of different things to different people.
Bullying is when people hurt or pick on you on purpose, for example by teasing you, hitting or kicking you
or saying that they will do this. It can involve people taking or breaking your things, making you do
something you don’t want to do, leaving you out or spreading hurtful and untrue rumours. Bullying can be
face to face, by mobile phone or on the internet. Have you ever been bullied at school? Remember, your
answers to this survey are private. We don’t know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 28)

34.8%

167

No (go to question 30)

65.2%

313

answered question

480

skipped question

75

Response

Response

Percent

Count

28. How recently have you been bullied at school?

In the last year

18.3%

32

In the last six months

13.7%

24

In the last four weeks

20.6%

36

47.4%

83

answered question

175

skipped question

380

I was bullied more than 1 year
ago

Page 126
16 of 26

29. How often has someone done something to bully you at school? This could be by the same person each
time, or different people.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A few times this year

42.6%

63

Every month

6.8%

10

Every week

10.8%

16

Most days

25.0%

37

Every day

14.9%

22

answered question

148

skipped question

407

30. Have you ever been bullied when you are not in school (including on your journey to school)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 31)

11.8%

54

No (go to question 33)

88.2%

404

answered question

458

skipped question

97

31. How recently have you been bullied when you are not in school (including on your journey to school)?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

In the last year

19.5%

16

In the last six months

15.9%

13

In the last four weeks

22.0%

18

42.7%

35

answered question

82

skipped question

473

I was bullied more than 1 year
ago

Page 127
17 of 26

32. How often has someone done something to bully you when you are not in school? This could be by the
same person each time, or different people.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

A few times this year

58.6%

51

Every month

12.6%

11

Every week

10.3%

9

Most days

9.2%

8

Every day

9.2%

8

answered question

87

skipped question

468

33. How well does your school deal with bullying? Remember, your answers to this survey are private. We
don't know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Very well

19.7%

91

Quite well

34.8%

161

Not very well

16.2%

75

Badly

13.8%

64

3.7%

17

11.9%

55

answered question

463

skipped question

92

Bullying is not a problem in my
school
Don't know

Page 128
18 of 26

34. How well does your youth club deal with bullying? Remember, your answers to this survey are private.
We don't know who you are.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Very well

9.5%

44

Quite well

7.5%

35

Not very well

2.6%

12

Badly

3.4%

16

4.3%

20

Don't know

9.3%

43

I don't go to a youth club

63.4%

294

answered question

464

skipped question

91

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Bullying is not a problem in my
youth club

35. What do you want to do when you finish Year 11?

Do a course in a school sixth

32.1%

150

28.4%

133

8.1%

38

6.4%

30

Get a full-time job without training

3.2%

15

Not sure yet

21.8%

102

answered question

468

skipped question

87

form
Do a course at college or sixth
form college
Do an Apprenticeship / Advanced
Apprenticeship
Get a job with training (full or parttime)

Page 129
19 of 26

36. Do you think that you will go to university / higher education in the future?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

55.2%

259

No

12.4%

58

Don’t know

32.4%

152

answered question

469

skipped question

86

37. How much help have you had to plan what to do after the end of Year 11? PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ON
EACH LINE Help from:

A Connexions Personal Adviser

Your family

A lot

A little

8.6% (39)

15.7% (71)

42.5%

33.9%

(194)

(155)

Your friends

14.3% (65)

Your teachers

20.8% (95)

College teachers

Someone telling you about their job

The online prospectus listing all the
courses in your area

8.1% (36)

18.4% (84)

8.4% (38)

34.4%
(157)
29.8%
(136)

9.5% (42)

27.2%
(124)

14.6% (66)

Page 130
20 of 26

Not very
much

12.0% (54)

8.8% (40)

18.9% (86)

20.6% (94)

10.4% (46)

18.2% (83)

12.4% (56)

None

46.6%

Don't

Response

know

Count

17.1% (77)

451

6.8% (31)

457

7.5% (34)

456

7.5% (34)

456

18.9% (84)

444

9.9% (45)

456

20.1% (91)

452

answered question

461

skipped question

94

(210)

8.1% (37)

25.0%
(114)

21.3% (97)

53.2%
(236)
26.3%
(120)
44.5%
(201)

38. Do you feel you have enough information and support to help you plan your future? For example help
from a teacher or careers adviser to choose subject options and think about jobs and careers.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

33.9%

154

No

21.4%

97

Don’t know what there is

23.3%

106

Not sure

21.4%

97

answered question

454

skipped question

101

39. How helpful is the information and advice you get in school on the things listed below? PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

Haven't

Response

received any

Count

Helpful

Not helpful

Don't know

Healthy food and lifestyles

61.6% (277)

19.6% (88)

10.4% (47)

8.4% (38)

450

Alcohol

64.6% (290)

17.1% (77)

8.0% (36)

10.2% (46)

449

Smoking

65.7% (295)

17.8% (80)

8.2% (37)

8.2% (37)

449

Drugs

67.2% (301)

16.5% (74)

7.6% (34)

8.7% (39)

448

Sex and relationships

53.0% (236)

18.2% (81)

12.4% (55)

16.4% (73)

445

Managing your money

47.6% (214)

19.1% (86)

12.4% (56)

20.9% (94)

450

Staying safe

63.8% (284)

18.2% (81)

10.6% (47)

7.4% (33)

445

Handling your feelings

42.8% (191)

25.8% (115)

15.7% (70)

15.7% (70)

446

Page 131
21 of 26

answered question

454

skipped question

101

40. How many of the ‘five a day’ fruit and vegetables did you eat yesterday? One of your ‘five a day’ is a
handful of vegetables, a piece of fruit or a cup of fruit juice.

Response

Response

Percent

Count

None

14.6%

64

1-2

31.0%

136

3-4

30.5%

134

5 or more

15.7%

69

Don’t know

8.2%

36

answered question

439

skipped question

116

41. Thinking back to last week, how often did you do something active? Please include things like walking to
school, running around, riding a bike, playing sports, skateboarding, dancing and swimming. PLEASE TICK
ONE BOX ON EACH LINE

I did something active before
school
I did something active during
lesson time (including PE lessons)
I did something active during
lunchtime/breaktimes
I did something active after school

Response

Every day

Most days

Some days

Never

25.2% (104)

10.7% (44)

18.0% (74)

46.1% (190)

412

14.0% (59)

28.0% (118)

50.8% (214)

7.1% (30)

421

35.8% (148)

21.1% (87)

21.1% (87)

22.0% (91)

413

34.8% (148)

24.2% (103)

26.6% (113)

14.4% (61)

425

Page 132
22 of 26

Count

answered question

437

skipped question

118

42. Did you take part in any organised sport or keep fit activities last weekend?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes

43.2%

189

No

56.8%

248

answered question

437

skipped question

118

43. The next questions are about whether you have ever drunk alcohol, smoked cigarettes, or taken drugs.
Please be as honest as you can and remember, your answers to this survey are private. We don't know who
you are. Have you ever had an alcoholic drink - a whole drink, not just a sip?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 44)

55.5%

242

No (go to question 45)

40.1%

175

4.4%

19

answered question

436

skipped question

119

I don't want to say (go to question
45)

Page 133
23 of 26

44. In the last four weeks, how many times have you been drunk?

Response

Response

Percent

Count

None

42.1%

131

Once

12.2%

38

Twice

6.4%

20

Three or more times

11.3%

35

Don't want to say

3.5%

11

Don't know / Can't remember

4.8%

15

I have never been drunk

19.6%

61

answered question

311

skipped question

244

45. Read the sentences below carefully and tick the box next to the one that best describes you:

I have never smoked
I have only ever tried smoking
once
I used to smoke sometimes but I
never smoke a cigarette now

Response

Response

Percent

Count

70.1%

303

12.5%

54

5.8%

25

2.3%

10

0.7%

3

5.1%

22

3.5%

15

answered question

432

skipped question

123

I sometimes smoke cigarettes now
but I don't smoke as many as one
a week
I usually smoke between one and
six cigarettes a week
I usually smoke more than six
cigarettes a week
I don’t want to say

Page 134
24 of 26

46. Have you ever taken drugs? (In this question the word drugs does not include anything you take as a
medicine. It does not include alcohol, but it does include solvents, glue and gas.)

Response

Response

Percent

Count

Yes (go to question 47)

11.8%

51

No (go to question 48)

85.6%

369

2.6%

11

answered question

431

skipped question

124

I don't want to say (go to question
48)

47. In the last 4 weeks, how often have you taken any of the following drugs? Don't worry if you don't know
exactly, just give us a rough idea.

Never
in the
last 4

Once

Twice

weeks

Cannabis or skunk

Solvents, glue or gas (to inhale or
sniff)
Other drugs (like cocaine, LSD,
ecstasy, heroin, crack, speed,
magic mushrooms, etc)

50.0%
(52)
64.3%
(63)

64.6%
(62)

7.7% (8)

2.9% (3)

2.0% (2)

2.0% (2)

1.0% (1)

2.1% (2)

Page 135
25 of 26

Three

Prefer

Don't

or more

not to

know/can't

times

say

remember

5.8% (6)

12.5% (13)

104

6.1% (6)

12.2% (12)

98

5.2% (5)

14.6% (14)

96

answered question

106

skipped question

449

21.2%
(22)
13.3%
(13)

12.5%
(12)

Response
Count

48. You have told us lots of things about your life. If there are three things that would make your life better,
what would they be? PLEASE TICK UP TO THREE BOXES ONLY

Response

Response

Percent

Count

More help to do better at school

20.6%

87

More interesting school lessons

43.3%

183

Less bullying

17.3%

73

25.3%

107

37.6%

159

15.6%

66

6.9%

29

More advice about being healthy

9.5%

40

More help to plan for my future

31.9%

135

3.5%

15

Someone I can always talk to

7.1%

30

None of these

7.8%

33

Something else

11.3%

48

Don’t know

13.7%

58

answered question

423

skipped question

132

More organised activities and things
to do
More places where I can go to
spend time with my friends
More chance to have a say in how
things are run at school or in the
local area
More ways I can volunteer or help
people

More help to feel safer at school
and in the local area

Page 136
26 of 26

